
AGENDA 
OURAY CITY COUNCIL 

Virtual Meeting 

MONDAY, April 6, 2020 
Regular Meeting – 6pm 

 Electronic copies of the Council Packet are available on the City website at www.cityofouray.com. A hard copy of the Packet is also available at the Administrative Office for interested citizens.

 Action may be taken on any agenda item

 Notice is hereby given that a majority or quorum of the Planning Commission, Community Development Committee, Beautification Committee, and/or Parks and Recreation Committee may be present
at the above noticed City Council meeting to discuss any or all of the matters on the agenda below for Council consideration

Join Zoom Meeting  

https://zoom.us/j/514775309?pwd=ZEVVNE5ZTUJ6Yjd3OWFIMXZqSFhiQT09 

Meeting ID: 514 775 309 

Or by phone: 

+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US

Regular Meeting – 6pm 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. CEREMONIAL/INFORMATIONAL

a. Federal Stimulus Package Update – Bond Attorney Paul Wisor
b. CEDC Presentation

4. CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATION
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 2, 4, 11, 16, and 20
6. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS/INFORMATION - Glenn Boyd, Ethan Funk, Peggy Lindsey, John Wood, and Greg Nelson
7. DEPARTMENT REPORTS

a. City Administrator
b. Public Works Director
c. City Resources Director
d. Chief of Police

8. CONSENT AGENDA  - Bed & Breakfast Liquor Permit – SG  B & B Corp. dba Secret Garden Bed & Breakfast
9. ACTION ITEMS

a. Second Chance Animal Services Agreement
b. Executive Search Firm Review
c. PSA – SGM Engineering for Geothermal Line Project
d. Possible Action on CEDC Recommendations
e. Possible Action on COVID-19 Response

10. DISCUSSION
a. Deputy City Administrator Position
b. Future Agenda Items

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Executive session pursuant to CRS § 24-6-402(4)(b) for a conference with the City Attorney for the purpose of
receiving legal advice concerning marketing and visitor center contracts; Second, to provide advice concerning CIRSA
matters; and third, pursuant to CRS § 24-6-402(2)(f) to discuss a personnel matter.

12. ACTION ITEM
Possible action concerning personnel matter

13. ADJOURNMENT

1

Page 5

Page 10

Page 26
Page 27

Page 29
Page 30

Page 32
Page 34

Page 39
Page 107

https://zoom.us/j/514775309?pwd=ZEVVNE5ZTUJ6Yjd3OWFIMXZqSFhiQT09


________________________________________________________________________________ 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (April 6, 2020): 

Bed & Breakfast Liquor Permit – SG B&B Corp. dba Secret Garden Bed and Breakfast 

Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Bed & Breakfast Liquor Permit for Secret 

Garden Bed and Breakfast? 

Background – This is an established business within the City of Ouray that currently 

possesses a B&B liquor permit. As is required by State Statute for all liquor permit 

holders, they must renew their permit annually. All the necessary paperwork and 

administrative requirements have been met and everything is in order for renewal. No 

issues have been identified with local law enforcement or State Liquor Enforcement for 

this renewal.  

Recommendation – City Staff recommends that City Council approve the Bed & 

Breakfast Liquor Permit – SG B&B Corp. dba Secret Garden Bed and Breakfast. 

P.O. Box 468 
320 Sixth Avenue 
Ouray, Colorado 81427 

970.325.7211 
Fax  970.325.7212 

www.cityofouray.com 

2



________________________________________________________________________________ 

ACTION ITEMS (April 6, 2020): 

Second Chance Animal Services Agreement 

Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Animal Services Agreement? 

Background – This is an annual renewal for animal services.  Previous agreements have 

been successful.  

Recommendation – City Staff recommends that City Council approve the Second Chance 

Animal Services Agreement. 

Executive Search Firm Review 

Action Requested – Will City Council select an executive search firm or select firms to interview 

on April 7th at 1pm? 

Background – City Council directed City Attorney Carol Viner to issue a request for 

proposal (RFP) for an executive search firm to begin the hiring process for the City 

Administrator.  The RFP, list of firms contacted, and responses are in the packet. 

Recommendation – N/A 

P.O. Box 468 
320 Sixth Avenue 
Ouray, Colorado 81427 

970.325.7211 
Fax  970.325.7212 

www.cityofouray.com 

3



PSA – SGM Engineering of Phase III Geothermal Line Project 

Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Professional Service Agreement with SGM for

Engineering Services for the 3rd phase of the geothermal waterline project? 

Background - The City is currently in the 3rd phase of design and construction for the hot 

water line delivery system that feeds the Ouray Hot Springs Pool with natural geothermal 

water. This new line will include updated piping and insulated lining that will further 

protect and preserve the water and heat. Our data currently shows a loss of approximately 

12 degrees from the heat exchange vault at 3rd and Oak to the pool. It is expected that this 

new improved infrastructure will help preserve the geothermal temps as it travels through 

the system, thereby providing increased heat at the pool. In 2018 the City began working 

with SGM on this project, however due to lack of expected grant funding in 2019, the project 

was delayed. With our approved and budgeted funds for this project this year, we are able 

to proceed with the improvements.  

Recommendation – Staff recommends that City Council approve the PSA with SGM for 

engineering services for the 3rd phase of the geothermal waterline project. 

Possible Action on CEDC Recommendations 

Action Requested – The CEDC will present their recommendations at this meeting. 

Possible Action on COVID-19 Response 

Action Requested – City Council may take actions as needed. 

4



1 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Ouray City Council 

FROM: Paul Wisor 

DATE:  April 2, 2020 

RE: COVID 19-Related Legislation 

 

As you are well aware, the COVID-19 pandemic has fundamentally altered the global economy 

and the way in which society functions. This memorandum sets forth a broad overview of the federal 

stimulus efforts aimed at stemming the spread of the COVID-19 virus and its associated fallout.  

This memorandum not only seeks to address legislative and regulatory impacts on the City of Ouray 

(the “City”), but provide perspective on the effect the stimulus legislation may have with respect to the 

broader Ouray community.  This larger picture is provided so the City may better understand opportunities 

and burdens facing Ouray businesses and employees as the City considers various ways to respond to the 

crisis. 

Please note the legislation discussed herein is subject to guidance and rulemaking from the 

Department of Treasury, Department of Labor, Internal Revenue Service and Small Business 

Administration, among others, and such direction is coming forth at a rapid pace.  In some cases, these 

efforts are fundamentally changing provisions within the legislation, and as such not all information 

provided in this memorandum will remain entirely precise. 

I.  Federal Legislation 

 Efforts to address the COVID-19 pandemic at the federal level have come in the form of three 

stimulus bills.  Phase 1, the Coronavirus Preparedness and Response Supplemental Appropriations Act, 

provided $8.3 billion in emergency funding for federal agencies to respond to COVID-19.  Phase II, the 

Families First Coronavirus Response Act (“FFCRA”), contained provisions for paid sick leave, free 

COVID-19 testing, food assistance, unemployment benefits, and requirements that employers provide 

additional protection for health care workers.  Phase III, also known as the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 

Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”), deployed $2 trillion dollars to expand upon the prior phases by 

providing greater assistance to individuals, small businesses, state and local governments and key industries 

impacted by COVID-19.   

A. Local Government Aid 

The CARES Act provides for $150 billion in aid to states and local governments. Funds will be 

allocated by the Treasury proportionally, but each state will receive at least $1.25 billion, and it is estimated 

Colorado will receive $2.2 billion.   However, the City will not receive any direct aid from the CARES Act 

as the legislation only applies to local governments with populations over 500,000. Only Denver and the 

counties of Adams, Arapahoe, Jefferson, and El Paso will be eligible to draw down some of the 2.2 billion 

dollars provided from Treasury.  The State will receive the remaining share and will be responsible for 

spending or allocating the remaining funds. There are no requirements for the State to allocate funds to the 

City, and it is yet to be determined how the State intends to utilize these funds.  As such, the City cannot 

count on any CARES Act dollars to either support the City’s efforts to address the COVID-19 pandemic or 

otherwise backfill lost revenue.  

 

 GARFIELD & HECHT, P.C. 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Since 1975 

 

www.garfieldhecht.com  

5

http://www.garfieldhecht.com/


2 

B. FFCRA

The FFCRA contains two critically important components that impact Ouray business and

employees as well as the City: (1) the Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act (the “FMLA 

Amendments”) and (2) the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act (the “Paid Leave Provisions”).  

1. FMLA

The FMLA Amendments create an additional emergency category of family and medical leave 

related to the coronavirus crisis. Specifically, the FMLA Amendments require an employer to provide up 

to 12 weeks of leave to any employee who has been employed by the employer for 30 calendar days if the 

employee cannot work (or telework) because he or she has to care for his or her children if the school or 

place of care for the child has been closed or if the child care provider for the child is unavailable due 

COVID-19.  

Traditionally, the FMLA was not applicable to employers with fewer than 50 employees. However, 

the FMLA Amendments make the coronavirus provisions of the FMLA applicable to any employer with 

fewer than 500 employees. Employer is also defined to include public authorities such as local governments. 

As such, small employers and local governments not traditionally subject to the requirements of the FMLA 

will now have to provide leave to employees who cannot work for certain coronavirus related reasons. 

However, certain small businesses can be exempted if the Secretary of Labor issues regulations exempting 

small employers because “the imposition of such requirements would jeopardize the viability of the 

business of a going concern.”  

The first 10 days of leave provided under the FMLA Amendments can be unpaid. After an unpaid 

10 days of leave, employers providing leave pursuant to the FMLA Amendments must pay the eligible 

employee in “an amount that is not less than two-thirds of an employee’s regular rate of pay.” However, in 

no event shall such paid leave exceed $200/day and $10,000 in the aggregate.  

2. Emergency Paid Leave

In addition to the FMLA Amendments, the FFCRA also contains Paid Leave Provisions. The Paid 

Leave Provisions require employers to provide up to 80 hours of paid sick leave to employees who are 

unable to work or telework due to a number of COVID-19 related reasons. However, if the employee is a 

part-time employee, the employer need only provide sick leave for a number of hours equal to the number 

of hours that such employee works, on average, over a two-week period, not the 80 hours it would need to 

provide to a full-time employee. Once again, employer is defined to include all private organizations with 

fewer than 500 employees as well as governmental entities, including the City. However, unlike the 

definition of employee under the FMLA Amendments, the Paid Leave Provisions require employers to 

provide this leave to employees regardless of how long they have been working for the employer. In 

addition, the employer may not require the employee to use other paid leave before the employee uses the 

paid sick time provided in the Paid Leave Provisions. 

The reasons for which employees may qualify for paid leave under the Paid Leave Provisions are: 

(1) they are subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order relating to COVID-19; (2) they

have been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine due to concerns related to COVID-19; (3)

they are experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical diagnosis; (4) they are caring for an

individual who is subject to a quarantine or self-isolation order or who has been advised to self-quarantine;

(5) they are caring for a son or daughter if the school or place of care of the son or daughter has been closed,

or the child care provider of such son or daughter is unavailable, due to COVID-19 precautions; or (6) they

6



3 
 

are experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the Secretary of Health and Human 

Services in consultation with the Secretary of Treasury and the Secretary of Labor.  

The amount to be paid by the employer for paid sick leave under the Paid Leave Provisions shall 

not be less than the employee’s rate of regular pay, but in no event shall it exceed $511 per day or $5,110 

in the aggregate for reasons numbered 1-3 above or $200 per day and $2,000 in the aggregate for reasons 

number 4-6 above.  

It should also be noted FFCRA contains provisions providing tax and payroll credits to employers 

to assist with the obligations imposed by the FFCRA; however, the details and the limitations of the credits 

are beyond the scope of this memorandum.  While the City has provided unpaid FMLA, the tax credits do 

not provide relief to the City for the additional cost of the FMLA Amendments or the Paid Leave Provisions.  

While most Ouray employers will be able to recoup the cost of the FFCRA costs, the City, at present, 

cannot. 

C. Unemployment Insurance 

Under Colorado law, a laid off or furloughed worker is entitled to unemployment payments at a 

rate of 55% of an unemployed worker’s salary, capped at $561.  The CARES Act provides for 

unemployment benefits that are both increased in amount and extended in time. Individuals who receive 

unemployment compensation in Colorado will also receive an additional $600 per week on top of ordinary 

state-authorized weekly benefits. The additional $600 will be available only until July 31, 2020. Further, 

the federal government will fund up to an additional 13 weeks of pandemic emergency unemployment 

compensation for individuals who remain unemployed after they have exhausted their benefits under state 

law, up to a maximum of 39 weeks of unemployment compensation to such individuals, an increase from 

the 26 weeks traditionally available in Colorado. The CARES Act extends eligibility for COVID-19-related 

benefits to individuals who otherwise would not be eligible for regular unemployment compensation. This 

includes expanding eligibility to include independent contractors, self-employed individuals and those with 

a limited work history. 

D. Paycheck Protection Program 

The CARES Act established the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”) which provides loans 

of up to $10 million to certain qualified small businesses through the Small Business Administration’s (the 

“SBA’s”) 7(a) loan program. These loans are intended to be forgivable if the Ouray employer maintains 

employees and otherwise complies with the CARES Act. Congress has appropriated $349 billion for this 

program. 

The PPP is available to small business concerns as well as 501(c)(3) nonprofits.  All such entities 

must have fewer than 500 employees (full and part-time).  The PPP makes no distinction as to the type of 

for profit business that applies, so construction firms, grocery stores, law firms, architects and salons are 

all treated the same.  The PPP expands allowable uses of 7(a) loans in include employee salaries, paid sick 

leave, medical leave, mortgage payments, rent payments, utility payments, insurance premiums and interest 

on any other debt obligations.   

Qualifying borrowers are eligible for loans up to 2.5 times their monthly payroll costs, measured 

over the prior twelve months, or $10 million, whichever is less. PPP loans do not require collateral from 

either the business or its owners like other SBA loans.  Similarly, PPP loans do not require personal 

guarantees from owners like other SBA loans. 

Loans provided to borrowers under the PPP are subject to forgiveness in the amount spent by the 

borrower during an eight week period after the origination date of the loan on the following items: 

7



4 

 Payroll costs;

 Interest payment on any mortgage put in place prior to February 15, 2020;

 Payment of any rent on any lease in effect prior to February 15, 2020;

 Payment of any utility charge, provide the utility service commenced prior to February 15,

2020. 

Any loan forgiveness amounts will be reduced proportionately by any reduction in employees of the 

borrower during the first eight weeks of the loan.  Note, this does not mean employers cannot separate from 

employees so long as they are replaced.  Amounts forgiven will also be proportionately reduced if an 

employee’s pay is reduced by twenty five percent or more as compared to the most recent quarter of 

employment.  

In the event amounts of the loan are not forgiven, the remaining balance will have a maturity of ten 

years, and a maximum interest rate of four percent.  For principal amounts that exist after any loan 

forgiveness under the PPP, small businesses may defer payment of remaining principal, interest, and fee 

balances for at least 6 months and not more than a year. Under the PPP, all borrowers are allowed to apply 

for deferment and all lenders have to apply complete deferment for all remaining balances for at least 6 

months. Thus, businesses under the PPP can get a substantial portion of their loan forgiven in the first 8 

weeks after the loan is issued, and not have to make any payments for up to a year. 

In an effort to incentivize banks to make loans under the PPP and speed up loan processing, the 

PPP increases the federal guaranty of such 7(a) loans to 100% for the remainder of 2020 and substantially 

modifies the procedures and requirements required of lending banks to have their loans guaranteed by the 

SBA.  For example, to assess eligibility lenders are only required to determine whether a business (1) was 

operational on February 15, 2020, and (2) had employees for whom it paid salaries and payroll taxes, or a 

paid independent contractor.   

E. SBA Disaster Relief Lending

Prior to the establishment of PPP loans through the CARES Act, Congress enhanced the SBA’s Economic

Injury Disaster Loans (“EIDL”) through its Phase I legislation.  An EIDL loan offers up to $2 million per individual 

business in assistance and can provide economic support to small businesses to help overcome the temporary loss 

of revenue they are experiencing.  These EIDLs may be used to pay fixed debts, payroll, accounts payable and 

other bills that cannot be paid because of the pandemic’s impact. The interest rate on a small business loan is 3.75%. 

The interest rate for non-profits is 2.75%.  SBA offers loans with long-term repayments in order to keep payments 

affordable, up to a maximum of 30 years. Terms are determined on a case-by-case basis, based upon each 

borrower’s ability to repay. 

The CARES Act further expands eligibility for EIDLs to any individual operating as a sole proprietor or 

independent contractor between January 31, 2020 and December 31, 2020. Until December 31, 2020, the SBA can 

approve EIDLs based solely on an applicant's credit score or an alternative appropriate method for determining an 

applicant's ability to repay. 

For EIDLs made before December 31, 2020 due to COVID-19, the SBA will waive the requirement for a 

personal guarantee on advances and EIDLs below $200,000, the requirement that an applicant needs to have been 

in business for the one-year period before the disaster as well as the requirement that a business not have credit 

available elsewhere. In addition, the CARES Act provides a federally declared emergency qualifies as a new trigger 

for the EIDL program, thus making EIDLs available nationwide. 

F. Direct Individual Aid

The CARES Act allocated $300 billion towards a one-time stimulus check of $1,200 to every Ouray

resident whose 2018 tax return, or 2019 if filed, showed income at or below $75,000 for an individual or 

$150,000 for a married couple. As such, a married couple with an income below $150,000 would receive 

$2,400, with an extra $500 per child. There’s no minimum threshold, so the vast majority of individuals in 

8



5 
 

Ouray reporting income in 2018 or 2019 will benefit.  Individuals who receive Social Security benefits but 

don't file tax return are still eligible as well.  Direct payments phase down after the $75,000/$150,000 caps 

and disappear completely for people making more than $99,000 and couples making more than $198,000. 

II. Conclusion 

The COVID-19 crisis will continue to impact Ouray for the foreseeable future.  While future federal 

legislation may benefit portions of the City’s operations, the City should not count on federal funds to assist 

it through the pandemic.  While congressional efforts do not directly address the City’s needs, there is at 

least hope some stimulus programs will provide a lifeline for businesses as well as individuals.  The City 

should take these programs into consideration as it determines the best way to meet the unique challenges 

posed by the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 

9



Ouray City Council Regular Meeting 

Summarized Minutes 

Monday, March 2, 2020 at 6:00pm 

MASSARD ROOM – Ouray Community Center 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Greg Nelson – Present  

Mayor Pro Tem John Wood – Present 

Councilor Glenn Boyd – Present 

Councilor Ethan Funk – Present 

Councilor Peggy Lindsey – Present 

 

Also present were City Administrator Justin Perry, City Resources Director Rick Noll, Police Chief Jeff Wood, 

Public Works Director Joe Coleman, Finance and Administration Director Melissa Drake, Community 

Development Coordinator Chris Hawkins, and City Attorney Carol Viner. 

 
3. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE WAS RECITED 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - none 

 
5. CEREMONIAL/INFORMATIONAL - none 

 
6. CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATION 

 
Dawn Glanc, OTO manager, talked about auditing the information on Google about Ouray in order to clean up 
posted hours, menus, tagged photos, and community assets such as the Montrose airport and hospital. 
Workshop on May 15 in the Community Center for business owners to verify public information available on 
Google. Councilor Boyd suggested including Higher Education on the list of assets for people wishing to move 
to Ouray. 

 
Steve Krazinksi (520 2nd St) would like to see more transparency in budget to eliminate gossip and confusion in 
the community. 

 
7. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS/INFORMATION 

 
a. Glenn Boyd – none  

 
b. Ethan Funk – none  

 
c. Peggy Lindsey – CAST meeting this week. Waste water treatment meeting to discuss city needs. 

 
d. John Wood – Google Project for tourist research. Same as Dawn’s communication. 

 
e. Greg Nelson – Region 10 meeting. Mayor’s videos will now be produced by the school. 

10



 
8. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
a. City Administrator – Colorado West Land Trust needs a council representative for their stakeholder 

meeting. Community Development Coordinator contingent offer has been accepted, more details to be 
released later. Parks & Facilities Maintenance position posted. COP refinance update: RFPs have been 
sent, banks should be responding within a week or so. 
 

b. Public Works Director – Investigation if Weehawken Spring is under influence of surface water, which might 
change water treatment methods. JVA update in packet. Sewer is over capacity frequently. Vault discussion. 

 
c. City Resources Director – sound system installed, video system on order. Ski hill will be shutting down soon. 

Scheduled pool closure for maintenance and cleaning. 

 
d. Chief of Police – Officers have completed firearm training, in-service training, and driving training. Updating 

parking ordinances. Updating business records, plan to coordinate with Google audit to get information. 
Brady will be attending a radio training that will save money for the city. 

 
9. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. Liquor License Renewal – JTP Incorporated dba Ouray RV Park and Cabins/Ouray Cafe  

 
b. Special Events Permit Application – ROCC – Spaghetti Dinner 

 
c. Special Events Permit Application – BPOE Lodge #492, Green Bingo 

 
Councilor Boyd made a motion to approve the consent agenda, Mayor Pro Tem Wood seconded. Passed 
unanimously. 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

 
a. Interim City Administrator Contract Position Process 

 
Reviewing resumes on Wednesday. Interviews planned for following week. Ms. Viner asked council to 
prepare list of desired qualities for interim city administrator. Discussion of extent of background check to 
be performed on interim. Agreement to limit authority of interim in contract (hiring/firing, spending limits, 
etc.). Council will prepare a list of interview questions for applicants for City Attorney to approve. 

 
John Hart wants council to be aware of acronym use with interim administrator to allow them to keep up. 

 
Council’s list of top qualities in an interim administrator: good communicator, professional, experienced, 
flexible, approachable, dynamic, and have a good TABOR understanding.  

 
Councilor Funk made a motion with the details and characteristics discussed, Councilor Lindsey seconded. 
Councilor Funk amended the motion to include the application review on March 4 and the interviews the 
following week. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
b. Planning Commission Appointments 

 
Two seats up for appointment this year. Both would like to be re-appointed. Councilor Boyd made the 
motion to re-appoint both Gary Dunn and Ryan Hein to Planning Commission. Mayor Pro Tem Wood 
seconded. Vote passed unanimously. 

11



 
c. PSA - Architectural Services for Columbus Building Hotel 

 
City will be acting as owner for State Historic Fund Grant for Columbus Hotel building project. Mayor Pro 
Tem made motion, Councilor Boyd seconded. Passed unanimously.  

 
d. Resolution 5, Series 2020 – To close the Ouray Volunteer Fire Department Special Fund at Citizens State 

Bank 
 

Closing City-controlled fund so Fire Dept can open their own using their own federal ID. Councilor Lindsey 
made a motion to close the unneeded account, Councilor Funk seconded. The Resolution passed 
unanimously.  

 
11. DISCUSSION 

 
a. Sidewalk Replacement Program 

 
Option 1: In-kind services, property owners pick contractors, Public works demolishes old sidewalk. 
Option 2: No in-kind services, contractor does all services. City would reimburse a portion of bill. 
Option 3: In-kind service as removal of old concrete, 3 bids submitted, and price will be averaged between 
all bids. This way we can coordinate schedule for sections of sidewalk. Contractor will bill the property 
owner. Councilor Boyd brought up the RFP limits. Need to define scope of work if issuing RFP.  

 
b. Future Discussion Items 

 

 Bringing in a pool consultant to solve issues 

 Discussion on social media policy 

 Probation period for new hires 

 Flume tax and other ballot issues 
 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

Executive session pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b and (4)(e)(I), for a conference with the City attorney for 
the purpose of receiving legal advice and to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to 
negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, concerning the City’s 
marketing and visitor’s center RFP and contract negotiations. 

 
At 7:55 pm, Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion to move into executive session, Councilor Boyd seconded. 
Passed unanimously. 

 
13. Possible action concerning the City’s Marketing and Visitor Center contract negotiations. 

 
Council came out of executive session at 8:57 p.m. Council, Mr. Perry and Ms. Viner were in the session. 

Mayor Nelson made a motion to separate the visitor center operation contract from the marketing contract, 

award the visitor center contract for one year at 160K and the marketing contract for one year for 250K but 

the City will hire a facilitator to assist in developing adequate deliverables and metrics for the marketing 

contract. Councilor Funk seconded it. After discussion, Mayor Nelson amended his motion to add that these 

contract will be for one year until March 31, 2021 so long as OTO has a clean audit for 2018 and 2019 by noon 

on March 16, 2020. Councilor Funk seconded the amended motion. It passed unanimously. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

12



 

The meeting adjourned at 9:06 and Mayor Pro Tem Wood motioned to adjourn and Councilor Funk seconded 
it. It passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: Greg Nelson, Mayor Date 

 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Ouray, Ouray County, State of 

Colorado, and that the above minutes are a true and correct summary of the meeting of the Ouray City 

Council held on March 2, 2020. I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a quorum 

was present. 

 

Dated this 12th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 

 

 

13



Ouray City Council Regular Meeting 
Summarized Minutes 

Wednesday, March 4, 2020 at 1:00pm 

MASSARD ROOM – Ouray Community Center 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 1:02 pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Greg Nelson – Present  

Mayor Pro Tem John Wood – Present 

Councilor Glenn Boyd – Present 

Councilor Ethan Funk – Present 

Councilor Peggy Lindsey – Excused 

 

Also present were City Administrator Justin Perry, Finance and Administration Director Melissa Drake, and 

City Attorney Carol Viner  

 
3. The PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was recited 

 
4. DISCUSSION ITEM – Review of Interim City Administrator Resumes and Cover Letters 

 
Council discussed the process with City Attorney Carol Viner. 
 
Councilor Funk made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss the applicants.  Ms. Viner stated that 
these will be contract employees and she has no legal advice to offer in an Executive Session.  Council 
discussed.  Mr. Funk withdrew his motion. 
 
Council discussed the process and the applicants. 
 

5. ACTION ITEM - Possible Action to Determine In-person Interviewees for the Position of Interim City 
Administrator 
 
Councilor Boyd made a motion to interview the following candidates for the position of Interim City 
Manager: Tom Acre, Robert Joseph, Alan Lanning, and David Torgler.  Mayor Pro Tem Wood seconded the 
motion.  Mayor Pro Tem Wood stated that the current Public Works Director Joe Coleman (internal 
candidate) has done a great job but the City needs him in his current position.  Mayor Nelson and Councilor 
Boyd also noted that Mr. Coleman does not have the required city administration experience.  
 
The motion was approved on unanimous vote. 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 2:02pm, Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Funk seconded the 
motion and it was approved on unanimous vote. 

 

14



 
      _____________________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Greg Nelson, Mayor   Date 
 
________________________________ 
Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Ouray, Ouray County, State of Colorado, 
and that the above minutes are a true and correct summary of the special meeting of the Ouray City Council held 
on March 4, 2020.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 4th day of March 2020. 
 
  
 
___________________________ 
Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 

15



Ouray City Council Regular Meeting 
Summarized Minutes 

Wednesday, March 11, 2020 at 1:00pm 

MASSARD ROOM – Ouray Community Center 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 1:00pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Greg Nelson – Present  
Mayor Pro Tem John Wood – Present 
Councilor Glenn Boyd – Present 
Councilor Ethan Funk – Present 
Councilor Peggy Lindsey – Present 

 

Also present were Finance and Administration Director Melissa Drake and City Attorney Carol Viner  

 
3. INTERVIEWS OF CANDIDATES FOR THE POSITION OF INTERIM CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
Council interviewed 4 candidates asking each candidate a set list of questions.  
 
They interviewed Alan D. Lanning at 1pm and John T. (Tom) Acre at 2pm.  Council took a break at 2:43pm.  
At 3pm, they resumed the meeting and interviewed Robert Joseph at 3pm.  Council took another break at 
3:53pm.  They resumed the meeting and interviewed David J. Torgler at 3:57pm.  At 4:27, Council took a 
break. 
 
Council reconvened at 4:34pm. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion to move into executive session, Councilor Funk seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION - pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(f) for Discussion Concerning the Interim City 
Administrator  
 
Council discussed the candidates. 
 
At 5:32pm Council returned to open session. 
 

5. ACTION ITEM - Possible Action Concerning the Interim City Administrator Position 
 
Council took no action. 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 5:33pm, Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Boyd seconded the 
motion and it was approved on unanimous vote. 

 
 

16



      _____________________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Greg Nelson, Mayor   Date 
 
________________________________ 
Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Ouray, Ouray County, State of Colorado, 
and that the above minutes are a true and correct summary of the special meeting of the Ouray City Council held 
on March 11, 2020.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 30th day of March 2020. 
 
  
 
___________________________ 
Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
           
 

17



Ouray City Council Regular Meeting 

Summarized Minutes 

Monday, March 16, 2020 at 1:00pm 

MASSARD ROOM – Ouray Community Center 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

Mayor Greg Nelson – Present 

Mayor Pro Tem John Wood – Present 

Councilor Glenn Boyd – Present 

Councilor Ethan Funk – Present 

Councilor Peggy Lindsey – Present 

 

Also present were City Administrator Justin Perry, City Resources Director Rick Noll, Police Chief Jeff Wood, 

Public Works Director Joe Coleman, Finance and Administration Director Melissa Drake, Community 

Development Coordinator Chris Hawkins, and City Attorney Carol Viner. 

 
3. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE WAS RECITED 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING  

 
Liquor License Application – Full Tilt Saloon LLC dba Full Tilt Saloon 

 
Mayor Nelson open the public hearing. 

 
Hearing no comments, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing. 

 
5. CEREMONIAL/INFORMATIONAL 

 
a. Corona Virus Update – Ouray County Public Health 

 
Tanner, Ouray County Health Director: BOCC emergency meeting at 4:00 pm, possible to call in to attend 
meeting remotely. Test kits on order, but other areas will get them first since we are at lower risk. Ouray 
County will probably receive tests sometime in April. Tanner receives daily reports from CDPHE as updates 
are made. Confirmed cases nationwide are low for lack of tests. Councilor Boyd reminds everyone that the 
coronavirus can live in the air for up to 3 hours, on hard surfaces up to 3 days. Councilor Lindsey asked for 
details on Telluride and Mountain Village quarantines. San Miguel County is on voluntary quarantine; it is 
strongly recommended that anyone who has been to San Miguel County in the last few weeks self-
quarantine. San Miguel is mirroring Eagle, Summit and Gunnison Counties in policies. No confirmed cases 
in San Miguel County yet, but they are testing. A sick person would get in touch with Tanner or their 
medical office who would determine if the symptoms warranted testing. Mr. Perry asked Tanner to 
confirm that the projected peak of diagnoses in the US will be around May 1st, and that people may not 
experience severe symptoms while still carrying the virus. Tanner was not able to confirm the peak 
diagnosis window, but he did confirm that around 80% of people infected will not feel horribly sick. 

18



Fatality rate is around 3-5%, flu is .1% annually. City of Montrose, City of Gunnison, etc. have all declared 
states of emergency, 26 more to follow suit today (March 16).  
 
Bette Maurer asked Tanner to define a quarantine.  

 
b. Mini-Training – Social Media 

 
Don’t have accidental meetings online by comments and replies. Have a private page and don’t use the 
same logo as city logo on any personal websites. Staff are also held to standards of conduct on social 
media.  
 
Covid-19 update page created on city website.  
 
Jennifer Peterson, as information officer, is on the incident command team as well.  

 
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 3, 18, and 20 

 
Small change to 2/20 minutes item 3d: change “met and greet” to “meet and greet”. Otherwise the minutes 
stand approved.  

 
7. CITIZENS’ COMMUNICATION 

 
Maureen, Ouray Public Library: attempt curbside service for families with kids who are home from school, 
may do home delivery for homebound people. Working with Tanner on what is reasonable. Library will work 
with food pantry for people who are concerned about food. 

 
8. CITY COUNCIL REPORTS/INFORMATION 

 
a. Glenn Boyd – nothing critical 

 
b. Ethan Funk – nothing critical 

 
c. Peggy Lindsey – nothing critical 

 
d. John Wood – nothing critical 

 
e. Greg Nelson – nothing critical 

 
9. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
a. City Administrator – Report in emergency preparedness section.  

 
b. Finance and Administration Director – Nothing to report. Mayor Nelson asked Ms. Drake how much of LOT 

funds went to OTO last year. Answer will be researched later.  
 

c. Community Development Coordinator – nothing critical 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



10. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Liquor License Renewal – Colorado Boy South, Inc. dba Colorado Boy Southwest 
 

Councilor Boyd made a motion to approve the consent agenda, Councilor Funk seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
11. ACTION ITEMS 

 
a. Liquor License Application – Full Tilt Saloon LLC dba Full Tilt Saloon 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion, Councilor Boyd seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
b. City Temporary Liquor License – Full Tilt Saloon LLC dba Full Tilt Saloon 

 
Councilor Boyd made a motion. Mayor Pro Tem Wood seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
c. OTO Contracts 

 
No audit has been received from OTO. Deadline was today at noon. Councilor Lindsey made a motion to 
table the conversation until next meeting, motion was not seconded. Motion died. Councilor Boyd said we 
have pushed the audit issue multiple times, we need to take action and not continue waiting. Councilor 
Lindsey was in favor of giving OTO another week to turn in an audit, but Mayor Nelson disagreed.  
 
Mark from OTO said they provided information to city auditor, thus the auditors are responsible for the 
delay. Ms. Drake says the auditor was receiving documents until last Friday. Ms. Viner states that the 
contract has a provision that OTO will hire their own auditor at their own cost, thus the city is not the 
client for this matter. 2018 audit was due at June 30, 2019 and has not been received yet. 2019 audit is 
due June 30, 2020.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood said there are two issues on the table: will the city continue to contract with the 
OTO, and if not, where will the LOT money go to? Concerns about lack of tourism coming to Ouray 
because of the virus making advertising expenditures not profitable or wise at this time.  
 
Councilor Boyd made a motion to table the conversation until the next council meeting since we are all 
distracted by the coronavirus situation. Mayor Pro Tem Wood Seconded.  
 
Dawn Glanc, visitor center manager, said many phone calls are coming in to the visitor center about the 
virus, and the city should consider the visitor center as a resource to the city to keep people connected 
and informed, even if the doors aren’t open. Building restrooms could be opened as well. Calls to the 
visitor center could be forwarded to the city main line to keep the resource of information.  
 
Mayor Nelson pointed out that the next city council meeting is April 6, after the contract terminates on 
March 31.  
 
Mayor Nelson voted against, motion passes 4-1.  
 
   
 
 
 
 

20



d. Possible Action Regarding Emergency Preparedness 

 
A local disaster emergency declaration and emergency ordinance provided to Council by Mr. Perry in 
response to the Covid-19 virus. Leadership team met and created a proposal for Council:  
 
Safety is number one priority. City is responsible for providing essential services although the city hall 
building will be closed to the public. City will re-evaluate opening city hall on April 3rd. Police Dept. has 
plan to limit their contact with the public. Public Works employees will continue scaled-back work around 
town and in the shop. Public restrooms in City Hall will be closed, but the public restrooms at the bank will 
still be open. Custodian will be equipped with PPE. City Administration will be closed but still conducting 
business over the phone and email. No face to face meetings. People are encouraged to not pay utilities 
with cash. Accounts Payable individual will be working in the office. Mr. Perry will work in the office in the 
morning and work from home in the afternoon. HR Manager, Finance and Administration Manager and 
Communications Officer will work remotely. IT support will work remotely when possible. Setting up 
remote meetings for Council, CEDC, Planning Commission, PARC, etc. Focusing on essential items in 
meetings only. City will monitor staffing levels to determine if same level is needed in the long term, 
should this continue. Aja Tibbs, the new Community Development Coordinator will begin work on March 
30, working remotely. Building Inspector will continue to work as usual, remotely when possible. 

 
Jennifer Peterson is in charge of Zoom meetings for the city, and IT will be in charge of access to working 
remotely for employees.  
 
Councilor Lindsey asked if the city should initiate the shutdown of local restaurants. Ms. Viner said the 
Ouray County Public Health department would be the organization to shut them down, not the city.  
 
Kristin Fairchild at Duckett’s said if panic buying stopped today it would take 2-3 months to completely 
restock, and the bread supplier is dropping stores in the area independently of the virus. Duckett’s will 
start a pickup order system where customers don’t actually go in the store, but call ahead with their order.  
 
City of Ouray and the County’s primary concerns are: the large percent of population over 60, the lack of 
medical facilities, and the food supply. If we have people quarantine in place, we will end up with any 
hotel/vacation home guests here needing our resources as well as the residents.  
 
Ms. Viner stated the County has a statutory right to declare an emergency to implement emergency plan 
and establish incident command. An Emergency Declaration would allow a municipality access to 
emergency funding available. Whatever the county implements applies to the cities within the county. The 
City can also declare a state of emergency and join a joint incident command with Ridgway, County and 
possibly school boards. Tanner, Director of Public Health, is in charge of the incident command. Staff 
needs to track hours worked related to virus management.  
 
Continuing with Mr. Perry’s response to the coronavirus: Community center will be closed until April 3rd. 
City Parks will be open, but no events booked. Ice Park closed on Sunday. Hot Springs and fitness center 
will be closed. Pool staff will be working on maintenance projects during the closing, moving them up from 
planned closure in April.  
 
Jennifer Peterson will be in charge of all city communications going forward, beyond virus 
communications, to give a unified voice for the city, including the pool and police department.  

 
Councilor Boyd would like to remind citizens that flushable wipes and other paper products should not be 
flushed, and we should be aware of water conservation with the increased hand washing. Brad Clark 
announced there was toilet paper in stock at the hardware store.  

21



Mayor Nelson would like to see unity and consistency in communications from the city, the Town of 
Ridgway and the County. Mayor Pro Tem Wood suggested using the Ouray School Radio Station to give 
updates to the public at specific times. Councilor Boyd said all communication must come from incident 
command to be consistent.  
 
Councilor Boyd made a motion to declare a local disaster emergency declaration, Councilor Funk 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood moved to adopt ordinance 3 for virtual meetings. Ordinance does not meet open 
meeting law, but would only pertain during the emergency declaration time. Councilor Boyd seconded. 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood would like to ratify City Administrator Perry’s actions of closing the pool and city 
hall. Councilor Funk seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
12. DISCUSSION 

 
Emergency Preparedness Budget 

 
If emergency situation is prolonged, city will run out of funds for operation. City needs to evaluate projects 
and expenditures coming up, including water meter project spending. Mr. Perry will have a leadership 
meeting to determine spending that can be cut and present it to council. City has around $3 million in liquid 
assets to address situation if necessary. Nothing has been received yet in regard to the COP refinancing.  

 
13. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
Executive session pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4)(b and (4)(e)(I), for a conference with the City attorney for 
the purpose of discussion of personnel matter and discussion of an Interim City Administrator.  

 
At 2:41 pm, Councilor Boyd made a motion to move into executive session, Mayor Pro Tem Wood seconded. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
14. Possible action concerning the City’s Marketing and Visitor Center contract negotiations. 

 
 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting adjourned at 9:06 and Mayor Pro Tem Wood motioned to adjourn and Councilor Funk seconded 
it. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: Greg Nelson, Mayor Date 

 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 

 

22



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Ouray, Ouray County, State of 

Colorado, and that the above minutes are a true and correct summary of the meeting of the Ouray City 

Council held on March 16, 2020. I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and that a 

quorum was present. 

 

Dated this 30th day of March, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 

 

 

23



 Council Meeting Minutes – 2/18/2020 Page 1 of 2  

Ouray City Council Special Meeting Summarized Minutes 
Friday, March 20, 2020 at noon 

320 6th Avenue – Community Center – Massard Room 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Nelson called the meeting to order at 12:05 pm 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Mayor Greg Nelson – Present  

Mayor Pro Tem John Wood – Present 

Councilor Glenn Boyd – Present 

Councilor Ethan Funk – Present 

Councilor Peggy Lindsey – Present 

 
Also present were City Administrator Justin Perry, Police Chief Jeff Wood, Public Information Officer 

Jennifer Peterson and Administrative Accounting Clerk Julie Lancaster.  

 
3. THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE WAS RECITED 

 
4. EXECUTIVE SESSION - pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-6-402(2)(f) for Discussion Concerning the Interim City 

Administrator 
 

Councilor Boyd made a motion to go to executive session at 12:09pm. Councilor Funk seconded. 
Motion passed unanimously.  

 
5. ACTION ITEM – Possible Action Concerning the Interim City Administrator Position 
 

Executive session concluded at 1:04.  
 
Mayor Nelson would like to waive the 30 day notice for termination so that Mr. Perry can serve as 
Administrator during this emergency, and so he can pursue his law enforcement career as he sees an 
opportunity arise, but continue to serve as Administrator for the time being.  
 
Councilor Boyd made a motion to continue with Mr. Perry as administrator, waiving the 30 notice 
period. Mayor Pro Tem Wood seconded. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wood made a motion for the city to stop the search for the interim administrator and 
move to finding a head hunter to hire a permanent administrator. Councilor Boyd seconded. Motion 
amended, councilor Boyd approved amended motion. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

24



 Council Meeting Minutes – 2/18/2020 Page 2 of 2  

At 1:12 pm, Councilor Funk made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Councilor Lindsey seconded the 

motion and it was approved on unanimous vote.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

ATTEST: Greg Nelson, Mayor Date 
 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Melissa M. Drake, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Ouray, Ouray County, State 
of Colorado, and that the above minutes are a true and correct summary of the meeting of the Ouray 
City Council held on March 20, 2020. I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held, and 
that a quorum was present. 

 
Dated this 30th day of March, 2020. 

 
 
 

 

Melissa M. Drake, City Clerk 

25



Public Works March Update 
 

Water 
• Water Usage Numbers for February: 

Influent (Water from spring) – 28,986,752 Gallons 
Effluent (Water to town) – 12,482,300 Gallons 
Ice Park – 2,338,320 Gallons 
Mineral Farms – 190,800 Gallons 

• Timberline Electric and Control Cooperation was onsite to continue working out some 
issues with the City SCADA system. We are working on getting totalizers corrected and 
our call out capabilities improved.  

Sewer 
• Continued skimming lagoons of debris when necessary.  
• The City contracted to have 15,000 feet of City Sewer cleaned and inspected. We found 

one source of infiltration and it has been addressed and corrected.  
• Repaired manhole along HWY 550 by pouring concrete around the cone. This manhole 

received damage due to plowing.  
Street 

• The City grader is currently leaking antifreeze into the oil. After trouble shooting what 
we could and not being able to find the issue, CAT in Grand Junction came to pick up the 
piece of equipment and repair for us. We currently do not know what the issue is yet.   

• Ordered new sander for plow truck.  
• Spot grade roads when weather permitted. 
• Worked on grading and drainage on Oak St. Added new road base.  
• RFP for Box Canyon Road Improvement Project was posted, pre-bid conference was 

held and all submittals are due on April 2nd 2020 at 3pm. 
City Resources 

• Continued geothermal monitoring.  
• MWAT Spread sheet for upstream conductivity probe. Downloaded data and added to 

the spreadsheet for DMR report. 
• Repaired rock wall at Fellin’ Park.  
• Pulled damage fence out of flume on 4th St.  
• Worked with SGM to get engineering PSA put together for Phase III of the Geothermal 

Line Project. This project has been postponed.  
• Hauled bleachers from the Ice Park back down to Fellin’ Park. 
• Meeting with the beautification committee to discuss staff roles, committee member 

roles and answer questions. Also discussed how the gardener and seasonal employees 
will now fall under City Resources. 

• Ordered porta potties for Fellin’ Park and the North Ouray Corridor.  
• Closed Sled Hill on March 9, 2020. 
• Stained benches in Fellin’ Park at the soft ball field.  

 

26



City Resources Department 

 
April 6, 2020 
 
The Hot Springs Pool and Community Center have been closed since March 16 because of the 
corona virus. For one week employees at the pool cleaned and disinfected the bathhouse until 
the Governor’s order for all workers to stay home except for essential services. Currently the 
only people at the pool are two maintenance personnel and the pool manager. During closure 
the pool filter systems must remain in operation and water must continue to be balanced and 
monitored. The requirements of the State water discharge permit continue being fulfilled while 
the pool is closed. Chemical use in the pools has been reduced to minimum levels. Maintenance 
personnel are deep cleaning individual pools, performing repairs on individual pools, and 
refilling them one at a time. Once filled, the pools will recirculate water but additional 
geothermal water will not be introduced. This will help minimize chemical costs used for 
pretreatment.  Currently the overlook pool has completed and staff will be cleaning the hot 
pool next. 
 
The spring maintenance and cleaning shut-down at the Hot Springs Pool had been scheduled 
for April 13. With the forced shut down many of those activities are taking place now. 
Necessary supplies and materials have been ordered (ascorbic acid, filter media, actuator parts, 
etc.). The suddenness of stay-at-home orders has delayed many deliveries. Pool maintenance 
staff have done a good job of ordering what is needed and scheduling work with the required 
flexibility to remain productive while waiting for delivery of specific items. 
 
The American Red Cross Aquatic Examiner Service conducted an unannounced onsite audit of 
the Hot Springs Pool early in March. The audit included incognito observations of the lifeguards 
on deck, safety drills with staff performing rescue scenarios, an inspection of the facility for 
safety equipment and supplies, and a review of training records and incident/accident reports. 
During lifeguard observations the staff performed well. Records were up to date and complete. 
Training and certifications were determined to be sufficient and recommendations were made 
of improvements to training that will make training more consistent with Red Cross standards. 
During this period when the pool is closed to the public the Pool Manager and Lead Lifeguards 
are revising the 12-month in-service schedule that has been in place at the facility.  There will 
be additional unannounced visits from the Aquatic Examiner Service once the facility is 
reopened. 
 
The City’s custodian is coming in as needed to clean and disinfect and to conduct maintenance 
activities at the Community Center.   
 
All events at the Community Center have been suspended. Several individuals who have 
reserved the Community Center have contacted staff to ask about refunds if they need to 
cancel. Staff is responding with acknowledgment of the inquiries and will defer providing 
additional information until there is more information on the length of the current emergency 
travel restrictions and until a policy on how to proceed with cancelations has been made by City 

27



Council. For those events scheduled right now, during the travel restrictions and restrictions on 
groups larger than ten people, refunds will be provided. 
 
Members of the Beautification Committee met with Pool and other City Resource Dept. staff to 
discuss the seasonal gardener position and to discuss gardening and beautification projects 
near the fish pond and the bathhouse near Fellin Park. The Beautification Committee will obtain 
bids for installing a fence around the mixing vault near the fishpond. This project may be 
delayed due to the current emergency situation. 
 
Applications have been received for the Parks and Facilities Manager position. Other activities 
in the City organization have become a higher priority during the covid-19 crisis. Applicants 
have been notified that there is a delay in the hiring process. 
 
During the Park and Recreation Committee (PARC) meeting on March 3rd there was discussion 
of holding a committee work session in April that would be specifically about Rotary Park. This 
discussion will be revisited at a future meeting.     
 
A counterfeit 10-punch pool pass was received at the Hot Springs Pool. Police were notified and 
the pass was confiscated by pool staff. 
 
A minimum level of night lighting at the Hot Springs Pool is required for safety and security at 
the facility. Pool staff have reduced the lighting that can be reduced or turned off. In water 
lighting must remain in order to allow police and others to determine if there is unwanted 
activity at the pool.   
 
The exhaust hood in the Massard Room kitchen was inspected and certified by a third-party fire 
protection company. These inspections are required twice per year. 
 
Equipment for audio/video improvements for City Council meetings in the Massard Room has 
been delivered and partly installed. The equipment that remains to be installed is stored 
securely and this project will resume once people can safely return to work. 
 
Much of the planning for the 100 year anniversary of the Box Canon Falls has been suspended 
until it is known when the Falls will be opening. Opening day is currently set for May 1 but it is 
likely that travel restrictions will remain in place on that date. The date of the anniversary is in 
August. Some sort of celebration will occur, but likely scaled down from the all-season activities 
that had previously been planned. 
 
 
 
 

 

28



City of Ouray Police Department 

Chief’s Report 

3/23/20-4/3/20 

 

During the reporting period OUDP responded to: 

 

3)  Medical assists 

2)  Rock slides 

4)  Sheriff’s Office assists 

2)  Animal complaints 

Additionally officers conducted approximately 100 patrol checks. 

 

On 03/21/2020 Chief Wood was asked to be the Incident Commander for the City of Ouray and to 

represent the city as part of a Unified Command structure for Ouray County’s response to the Covid 19 

pandemic response.  This requires between three and seven hours of time per day of coordination with 

the other incident commanders and the public information officers. 

29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (April 6, 2020): 
 

 

Bed & Breakfast Liquor Permit – SG B&B Corp. dba Secret Garden Bed and Breakfast  

   

Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Bed & Breakfast Liquor Permit for Secret 

Garden Bed and Breakfast? 

 

Background – This is an established business within the City of Ouray that currently 

possesses a B&B liquor permit. As is required by State Statute for all liquor permit 

holders, they must renew their permit annually. All the necessary paperwork and 

administrative requirements have been met and everything is in order for renewal. No 

issues have been identified with local law enforcement or State Liquor Enforcement for 

this renewal.  

 

Recommendation – City Staff recommends that City Council approve the Bed & 

Breakfast Liquor Permit – SG B&B Corp. dba Secret Garden Bed and Breakfast. 

 

P.O. Box 468 
320 Sixth Avenue 
Ouray, Colorado 81427 

970.325.7211 
Fax  970.325.7212 

www.cityofouray.com 

30



31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ACTION ITEMS (April 6, 2020): 
 

Second Chance Animal Services Agreement 

 

Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Animal Services Agreement? 

 

Background – This is an annual renewal for animal services.  Previous agreements have 

been successful.  

 

Recommendation – City Staff recommends that City Council approve the Second Chance 

Animal Services Agreement. 

 

 

Executive Search Firm Review 

 

Action Requested – Will City Council select an executive search firm or select firms to interview 

on April 7th at 1pm? 

 

Background – City Council directed City Attorney Carol Viner to issue a request for 

proposal (RFP) for an executive search firm to begin the hiring process for the City 

Administrator.  The RFP, list of firms contacted, and responses are in the packet. 

 

Recommendation – N/A 

  

P.O. Box 468 
320 Sixth Avenue 
Ouray, Colorado 81427 

970.325.7211 
Fax  970.325.7212 

www.cityofouray.com 

32



 

 

PSA – SGM Engineering of Phase III Geothermal Line Project 

 

 Action Requested – Will City Council approve the Professional Service Agreement with SGM for

 Engineering Services for the 3rd phase of the geothermal waterline project? 

 

Background - The City is currently in the 3rd phase of design and construction for the hot 

water line delivery system that feeds the Ouray Hot Springs Pool with natural geothermal 

water. This new line will include updated piping and insulated lining that will further 

protect and preserve the water and heat. Our data currently shows a loss of approximately 

12 degrees from the heat exchange vault at 3rd and Oak to the pool. It is expected that this 

new improved infrastructure will help preserve the geothermal temps as it travels through 

the system, thereby providing increased heat at the pool. In 2018 the City began working 

with SGM on this project, however due to lack of expected grant funding in 2019, the project 

was delayed. With our approved and budgeted funds for this project this year, we are able 

to proceed with the improvements.  

 

Recommendation – Staff recommends that City Council approve the PSA with SGM for 

engineering services for the 3rd phase of the geothermal waterline project. 

 

 

Possible Action on CEDC Recommendations 

 

 Action Requested – The CEDC will present their recommendations at this meeting. 

 

 

Possible Action on COVID-19 Response 

 

 Action Requested – City Council may take actions as needed. 

 

33



ANIMAL SHELTER MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE AGREEMENT  

This Animal Shelter Management and Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as this 

"Agreement"), is made this ___ day of  , 2020 between Second Chance Humane Society, a 

Colorado nonprofit corporation, (hereinafter referred to as the "Humane Society") and the City of 

Ouray, Colorado, a home-rule municipal corporation,  (hereinafter called the "City"). 

MATERIAL TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE THE FOLLOWING POINTS: 

A. The Humane Society provides much needed shelter for impounded, strayed and surrendered 

animals in Ouray and San Miguel Counties and the City currently has no facility to care for or shelter 

such animals. 

B. Pursuant to C.R.S. §31-15-401, et seq., the City of Ouray is authorized to enter into 

agreements to provide for the impoundment or disposition of pet animals. 

C. The Humane Society and the City desire to have a management and servicing agreement to 

provide for present and future impoundment, shelter and disposition services as authorized by the 

above referenced statutes. 

D. This contract provides for the impoundment of animals at the Humane Society, and such 

agreement further provides that owners who retrieve their animal from the Humane Society will pay 

certain fees and charges for board, care and impoundment of pet animals. 

E. The parties wish to set forth an agreement regarding the payment to the Humane Society for 

the impoundment, shelter and disposition of pet animals that may not be retrieved by their owners 

and that have been deposited with the Humane Society by the City of Ouray Police Department. 

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND PROMISES, THE PARTIES 

AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. "Services", as used herein, shall mean holding and caring of impounded and strayed dogs or 

cats from within the City of Ouray, providing necessary food, sustenance and health care including 

vaccinations and physical exams as may be needed; while under the jurisdiction of the City, humanely 

disposing of dogs or cats following final consultation with and at the direction of the City; and all the 

administrative work that is associated with caring for stray and impounded animals. City law 

enforcement officials or contracted animal control officers will have access to the shelter seven days 

a week, during regular business hours. For after-hours impounds, the Humane Society will ensure 

that an on-call staff member is available to accept the impounded animal and on-call information will 

be provided by the Humane Society to all appropriate dispatch centers. "Services" does not include 

collection, transport or seizure of animals or handling of dangerous animals. 

2. “Seven Day Hold,” as used herein shall refer to the period of time during which the City 

retains ownership of and responsibility for animals provided by the City to the Humane Society for 

services contemplated in this Agreement.  At the conclusion of the Seven Day Hold, the City’s 

ownership of the animals in the possession and care of the Human Society shall transfer and the 

Human Society shall have exclusive responsibility with respect to final disposition, adoption, or 

termination of the animals.  The Humane Society shall abide by its adopted policies and procedures 

at all times, and shall have sole authority of animals in its possession at expiration of the Seven Day 

Hold. 

 

34



Page 2 of 2  

3. The Humane Society agrees to provide the Services, as defined above, on behalf of the City. 

In addition, the Humane Society agrees to join with public officials and the public in general in 

dissemination of information concerning the need for the proper care and treatment for all animals, 

and to advocate the prevention of needless birth of unwanted animals. 

4. For purposes of this Agreement, for calendar year 2020 the following fees shall apply for dogs 

or cats that are accepted by the Humane Society from the City: 

Board and care…………………………… $20.00/day per animal 

  …………………………………….$25.00/day for unaltered animals 

  …………………………………….$$25.00/day for aggressive/dangerous animals 

Processing fee……………………………. $20.00 

After hours fee…………………………… $25.00 

On-site assistance to law enforcement…… $15.00/hour 

Euthanasia fee for aggressive/dangerous 

dogs or cats (including untreatable cats) 

assessed as non-rehabilitative…………… $138.00 

Rabies testing when required……………. up to $180.00 

Feral cat TNR……………………………. $138.00 

Animals that are impounded, but claimed by their owners, will not be billed to the City as the Humane 

Society will collect impoundment fees from the animal owners. Board and care shall be charged per 

dog or cat for up to a maximum of seven calendar days. The Humane Society will email the City 

Chief Marshal and designated code enforcement officer whenever an animal is impounded and City 

will be charged for unclaimed animals under the terms of this Agreement, provided invoices include 

the animal identification code, for example, "Stray (date)" and a detail of services rendered. Only 

those charges for unclaimed animals that are retained during the Seven Day Hold, or for animals that 

die in care prior to the end of seven days, shall be charged to the City. The Humane Society shall 

provide the City on a quarterly basis a detailed invoice for such services, referencing each animal 

("Stray (date)") and providing complete information about the location of where the animal was 

found, its disposition, and the amount being charged for each service rendered. City agrees to pay 

such charges to the Humane Society within thirty days of receipt of such invoice, up to a maximum 

amount of $3,000.00 for calendar years 2019 - 2020, including any and all charges for services 

contemplated in this Agreement, including those referenced in this paragraph 3, as well as in 

paragraph 6 below. If the invoice information provided about each animal is not complete, the City 

may, at its discretion, refuse to pay for services for animals for which information is incomplete. 

5. City shall not be responsible to pay fees for services rendered to animals that are voluntarily 

surrendered by residents or guests from within Ouray County. 

6. In those instances in which an animal is impounded by, or at the request of, the City and placed 

with the Humane Society, if no owner appears to claim the animal and pay the associated fees and 

costs during the Seven Day Hold and after notification that the animal has been impounded, the animal 

shall be deemed abandoned.   

 

35



Page 2 of 2  

7. In instances in which an unclaimed animal impounded by or at the request of the City has 

been injured, the parties agree that the City is responsible for emergency medical costs required to 

prevent an injured animal from suffering during the Seven Day Hold period. All costs attributable to 

such care shall be included in the fee cap in paragraph 3 above. 

8. The Humane Society agrees that all Services which may be provided hereunder shall be 

performed in full compliance with all applicable federal and state rules, laws or regulations. The 

Humane Society shall indemnify and hold City harmless from and against any and all claims, 

demands or actions, including all attorney fees that may be incurred by the City, which may be 

brought against the City as a result of the impoundment, holding or caring for dogs or cats pursuant 

to the terms of this Agreement and/or as a result of the action or inaction of the Humane Society with 

regard to any impounded or stray dog or cat once said animal is under the care and control of the 

Humane Society staff and provided that the animal has been received by the Humane Society staff in 

good health and condition. This obligation under Section 1 shall not be construed to extend to any 

injury, loss or damage that is caused by the act, omission or other fault of the City, its officers or its 

employees.  To the extent provided by law, the City shall indemnify and hold the Humane Society 

harmless from and against any and all claims, demands or actions, including all attorney fees that may 

be incurred by the Humane Society with respect to this Agreement.  

9. The Humane Society shall keep appropriate records, reports and documents relating to the 

services provided hereunder for at least three years and such records, reports and documents shall be 

reasonably made available to the City for review or audit. 

10. The prevailing party in any action to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall 

collect all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in such action, including, but not limited to, 

reasonable attorney fees. 

11. This Agreement may be terminated by either party by giving thirty days written notice to the 

other party. 

12. The Humane Society shall not assign its rights or interest in this Agreement without the prior 

written consent of the City. 

13. In performing the services under this Agreement, the Humane Society shall be an independent 

contractor and neither the Humane Society nor any of its employees shall be considered employees 

or agents of the City. 

14. Pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-101 et seq. the Humane Society certifies the following: 

i. the Humane Society shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to 

perform services under this Agreement. 

ii. the Humane Society shall not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify 

to the Humane Society that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an 

illegal alien to perform services under this Agreement. 

iii. the Humane Society has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are 

newly hired for employment to perform services under this A through participation in either  

1. the E-verify Program, (the electronic employment verification program created 

in Public Law 104-208, as amended, and expanded in Public Law 108-156, as amended, 

36



Page 2 of 2  

and jointly administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and the 

Social Security Administration, or its successor program); or 

2. the Department Program (the employment verification program established 

pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(5)(c)). 

iv. the Humane Society shall not use the E-verify Program or the Department Program to 

undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is in effect. 

v. If the Humane Society obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing services 

under this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Humane Society 

shall:  

1. notify subcontractor and City within three days that the Humane Society has 

actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; 

and  

2. terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving 

the notice required pursuant to this paragraph, the subcontractor does not stop employing 

or contracting with the illegal alien. Except that the Humane Society shall not terminate 

the contract with the subcontractor if during such three days the subcontractor provides 

information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted 

with an illegal alien. 

vi. the Humane Society shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado 

Department of Labor and Employment made in the course of an investigation that the Colorado 

Department of Labor and Employment undertakes pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(5). 

vii. If the Humane Society violates these illegal alien provisions, City may terminate this 

Agreement for a breach of contract. If this Agreement is so terminated the Humane Society shall 

be liable for actual and consequential damages to City.  

City shall notify the Office of the Secretary of State if the Humane Society violates these provisions and 

City terminates this Agreement for that reason pursuant to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(4). 

15. The Humane Society will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, disability or national 

origin.  The Humane Society will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and 

that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, age, sex, 

sexual orientation, disability, or national origin.  Such action shall include but not be limited to the 

following:  employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, 

layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, 

including apprenticeship.  The Humane Society agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to 

employees and applicants for employment, notice to be provided by an agency of the federal 

government, setting forth the provisions of the Equal Opportunity Laws. 

16. The Humane Society shall be in compliance with the applicable provisions of the American 

with Disabilities Act of 1990 as enacted and from time to time amended and any other applicable 

federal, state, or local laws and regulations.  A signed, written certificate stating compliance with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act may be requested at any time during the life of this Agreement 

or any renewal thereof. 

37



Page 2 of 2  

17. The terms of this Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2020 and shall terminate 

December 31, 2020. The Parties may renew or renegotiate this Agreement prior to December 31, 

2020, for the calendar year 2021. In the event that this Agreement has not been renegotiated and 

executed by said expiration date, the terms of this Agreement shall continue on a month-to-month 

basis until such time as a new Agreement has been reached between the parties, or until the parties 

agree to not renew the Agreement or to terminate the Agreement as provided in paragraph 11 above. 

18. Any provision of this Agreement or its attachments which impose upon the City, directly or 

indirectly, any financial obligation whatsoever to be performed or which may be performed in any 

fiscal year subsequent to the year of execution of this Agreement is expressly made contingent upon 

and subject to funds for such financial obligation being appropriated, budgeted and otherwise made 

available. 

This Agreement is entered into as of this   day of   , 20120. 

SECOND CHANCE HUMANE SOCIETY 

a Colorado non-profit corporation 

 

       

Kelly Goodin     Date 

Executive Director  

 

CITY OF OURAY, COLORADO   ATTEST 

a Home-Rule Municipal Corporation  

              

Greg Nelson   Date   Melissa Drake    Date 

Mayor       City Clerk  

 

38



1 
 

 
 

 
TO:  Possible Firm or Applicant 

 

FROM:  City of Ouray, Colorado 
 

 
RE:  Council’s Executive Search 
 
The City of Ouray  (City)  is  searching  for qualified  firms who may be able  to provide  the  services of an Executive 
Recruitment  Search  Firm,  capable  of  conducting  a  search  for  candidates  qualified  to  serve  as  a  permanent  City 
Administrator of Ouray,  Colorado.    It  is  possible  the  scope of  services may  include  a  search  for  an  Interim City 
Administrator during  the  search process.  If you are  interested  in  submitting a proposal,  it  should be e‐mailed  to 
Melissa Drake, Deputy City Administrator at drakem@cityofouray.com  no later than 3:00 p.m. (MST), April 3, 2020. 
 

The short turnaround time is necessary due the disaster emergency due to COVID‐ID.  Council desires to begin the 
process of hiring a City Administrator now.  Most of the initial search steps can be conducted via video conferencing.  
If interested, you should plan to be available for an interview with City Council and executive staff using Zoom on April 
7, 2020 beginning at 12:00 Noon (MST). 
 
The  City  of  Ouray  is  subject  to  public  information  laws, which  permit  access  to most  records  and  documents. 
Proprietary  information  in  your  response must  be  clearly  identified  and will  be  protected  to  the  extent  legally 
permissible. Proposals may not be marked ‘Proprietary’ in their entirety. All provisions of any contract resulting from 
this request for proposal will be public information. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 

Carol A. Viner, 
City Attorney 
 
Enclosures 

320 6th Avenue 
PO Box 468 
Ouray, Colorado 81427 

970.325.7211 
Fax 970.325.7212 

www.cityofouray.com 

The Outdoor Recreation Capital of Colorado 

39

cviner
Cviner Signature



2 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SEARCH FIRM 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

The City of Ouray (City) is requesting limited proposals (no more than five pages) which set forth your 
ability to provide the services of an Executive Recruitment Search Firm, capable of conducting a 
search for candidates qualified to serve as the City Administrator of Ouray, Colorado. 

 
II. OVERVIEW 

 
The City has a rich history starting with Native Americans and then early Spanish explorers who 
frequented Ouray’s hot springs. Ouray then became famous for its vast gold and silver reserves 
when mining became the major economic driver. This lasted from before the City’s incorporation 
on October 2nd, 1876 through the early 1980s. In that time, Ouray developed a reputation as a 
tourist destination for families and adventurers. Now with tourism as the predominant economic 
driver, a vast array of recreational activities are available including hiking, climbing (both rock and 
ice),  jeeping,  backcountry  skiing,  snowmobiling,  snowshoeing, ATV  rentals,  bird watching,  hot 
springs soaking, and the list goes on.  
 
The year‐round population of Ouray is approximately 1,000 people but has many additional second 
homeowners and  is a very popular mountain resort destination. The City  is the county seat for 
Ouray County and has an excellent working relationship with both Ouray County and the County’s 
other municipality,  the  Town  of  Ridgway.    Summertime  is  the  predominant  time  of  year  for 
residents and visitors culminating with the 4th of July when as many as 15,000 people will visit or 
pass through Ouray. The winter economy is not as robust but still has significant visitations because 
of the Ice Park and a growing backcountry recreation market.   
 
The  City  is  a  Home  Rule  municipality  and  operates  under  a  Council‐Administrator  form  of 
government. The City Council is comprised of five members including the Mayor as the presiding 
officer. All Council members are elected at  large with Council members serving four‐year terms 
and the Mayor two‐year terms, with no term limits. The current City Council is new (4 out of 5) 
and will require assistance with updating the job description, defining the type of Administrator 
they desire and need and may need assistance with hiring an interim.   
 
The  City  Administrator  oversees  the  following  departments:  Administration  &  Finance,  City 
Resources, Community Development, the Fire Department, Police Department, and Public Works. 
The City owns and operates the Ouray Hot Springs Pool.  The City has significant challenges in the 
short term and long term, requiring a City Administrator that can lead the City through the difficult 
times ahead.    
 
III. SCOPE OF SERVICES – EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT 

 
The ideal firm will deliver Executive Recruitment services as follows: 

 
The Consultant shall work with the City Council and  leadership team of the City to actively source, 
recruit,  evaluate  suitability of,  interview  and  refer qualified  candidates  for  the position of both  a 

40



3 
 

permanent City Administrator, including but not limited to:  
 

 Facilitate,  in partnership with the City Council and  leadership team, the solicitation of valuable 
community input and feedback regarding a new City Administrator 

 Assist  the  City  Council  in  establishing  selection  criteria  for  evaluating  City  Administrator 
candidates. 

 Work  with  the  City  Council  to  develop  an  updated  job  description  and  other  descriptive 
documents  for  prospective  candidates  (position  profile,  background  information,  marketing 
materials, etc.) using the community feedback. 

 Conduct networking and other  search activities  to generate a diverse pool of highly qualified 
prospective  candidates  who meet  the  City  Council’s  selection  criteria.  These  activities  shall 
include, at a minimum, publishing the vacancy using regional and national means. Consultant shall 
focus on identifying potential candidates; screening them for suitability with the City of Ouray and 
motivating them to interview for the position of City Administrator. 

 Work with City Council  to  review qualified  applicants,  recommended  finalists  and  scheduling 
interviews.  Consultant  shall  provide  best  practices  and  legal  requirements  and  instructions 
applicable through the process. 

 Facilitation of on‐site interview process. 
 Conduct reference and background checks on finalists, review benefits and generally assist in the 

hiring process in ways and at the times requested by the City Council. 
 Provide notification to all candidates who applied but were not selected for initial interviews and 

to those interviewed but not offered the position. 
 Work with the City Council to coordinate/negotiate an offer of employment and related details 

with the final candidate, if requested. 
 Consultant shall act  in an attentive, ethical, and responsible manner and represent the City of 

Ouray  with  the  utmost  concern  for  its  interests,  goals  and  image  with  candidates,  other 
communities, and members of the general public. 

 
IV. SCOPE OF PROPOSAL (No more than 5 Pages) 

 

1. Submit qualifications and approach to provide the Scope of Services outlined above. 
2. Identify the key person who will work with the City though‐out the above process. 
3. Provide total cost to provide services defined above. Pricing must include all items annotated 

in the Scope of Services. 
4. Brief company profile to include years in business and performance indicators used to verify 

the Scope of Services is being met. 
5. List of three (3) reference contacts in Colorado. 

 

41



City of Ouray-Recruiter List
2/26/2020

Firm Name Contact Name email

Slavin Management Consultants Robert Slavin slavin@bellsouth.net
KRW Sam Mamet smamet@comcast.net
Peckham & McKenney, Inc. Drew Gorgey drew@peckhamandmckenney.com
GovHR Laurie Pederson lpederson@govhrusa.com
Strategic Government Resources Kristin Navarro KristinNavarro@GovernmentResource.com
Prothman info@prothman.com

42

mailto:slavin@bellsouth.net
mailto:smamet@comcast.net
mailto:drew@peckhamandmckenney.com
mailto:lpederson@govhrusa.com
mailto:KristinNavarro@GovernmentResource.com
mailto:info@prothman.com


website phone

www.slavinmanagementconsultants.com 770-449-4656
www.krw-associates.com 303-503-2938
www.peckhamandmckenney.com 866-912-1919 E
www.govhrusa.com 847-380-3198
www.governmentresource.com 817-337-8581
www.prothman.com 206-368-0050

43

http://www.slavinmanagementconsultants.com/
http://www.krw-associates.com/
http://www.peckhamandmckenney.com/
http://www.govhrusa.com/
http://www.governmentresource.com/
http://www.prothman.com/


44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



1 

 

 
        Executive Search and Organizational Consulting 
       Web: krw-associates.com 

       Lorne Kramer, MPA – Grayson Robinson, MPA - Jerry Williams, DPA 
 

PROPOSAL AND LETTER OF AGREEMENT (LOA)  
 
Melissa Drake 
Deputy City Administrator 
City of Ouray, Colorado 
PO Box 468 
Ouray, CO 81427 
 
April 2, 2020 
 
RE:  City Administrator Recruitment and Selection Process Proposal and LOA 
 
Dear Ms. Drake: 
 
KRW Associates LLC (KRW) requests that you consider this proposal and, if satisfactory, adopt this 
Letter of Agreement (LOA) as a working document for the upcoming selection and assessment 
process for the position of City Administrator for the City of Ouray (City).  The intent of this letter is to 
provide a structure and timeline regarding KRW’s services, concisely summarize the duties and 
responsibilities regarding the process, state the set fee, and validate the working relationship.  KRW 
Associates LLC (KRW) is a limited liability company headquartered in Colorado Springs with offices in 
Aurora and Arvada, Colorado and Goodyear, Arizona. 
 
Based on our professional experience and educational credentials, we believe that we are extremely 
well suited to assist you with this assignment.  We have extensive practitioner backgrounds as a city 
manager, police chiefs and executive search consultants, and have contacts and professional 
friendships with highly qualified police executives throughout the country.   

  

The principals of KRW Associates LLC have served a variety of cities, counties, and other entities with 
successful executive searches for many years.  For example, the principals of KRW Associates LLC. 
have finished successful placements in places such as the Town of Bayfield, City of Brighton, Town of 
Monument, Town of Windsor, Greenwood Village, Steamboat Springs, Idaho Springs, Englewood, 
Castle Rock, Evans, Fort Lupton, Frisco, Golden, Granby, the University of Colorado at Denver, Vail, 
and Wheat Ridge, Colorado, just to name a few. (Please see the enclosed sample client list and 
enclosed biographical information.) KRW was recently retained by the City of Fort Morgan to conduct 
their search for a new City Manager. We believe that no executive search firm knows Colorado cities 
and towns as thoroughly and personally as our firm. We are uniquely qualified to perform a recruitment 
and selection process for your City Administrator position.   In conjunction with the City of Ouray, we 
have the capability to take this process from the announcement stage through the final selection and 
reference checks of candidates. Due to low overhead and travel costs, our fees are typically more 
competitive than other firms.  We have contacts with city managers and other municipal executives 
throughout the nation and have the ability to elicit their cooperation and support with our processes. 
This, coupled with our KRW candidate database, helps us to solicit quality candidates.  We can also 
advise you with important candidate information, as well as the final negotiation process.  Enclosed 

73



2 

 

please find several items: a.) a project cost sheet; b.) sample client list; c.) biography sheet; and d.) 
complete list of references.  Hopefully these items provide the information needed to make an informed 
decision 
 
Regarding a process for the City of Ouray City Administrator, we envision a schedule and timeline 
which would progress as quickly as possible once the proposal and letter of agreement are approved. 
Mr. Lorne Kramer and Dr. Jerry Williams, each with decades of experience will personally handle your 
project. Mr. Kramer is the former City Manager, Deputy City Manager and Police Chief for the City of 
Colorado Springs, Colorado and has over 14 years of executive search experience. Dr. Jerry Williams 
has been active in executive search since 2001 and is the former Police Chief in both Arvada and 
Aurora Colorado. He is also the former Director of the master’s program in Police Executive Leadership 
at CU Denver. In addition, Mr. Sam Mamet, KRW Associate and the former Executive Director of the 
Colorado Municipal League will be an active member of the project team. Mr. Mamet has extensive 
professional contacts throughout the nation and will engage in outreach efforts to attract qualified 
candidates. 
 
Interim City Administrator 
If required, KRW will assist in identifying and placing an Interim City Administrator. This service would 
be included in the stated fee listed in Addendum A. 
 
Recruitment Process  

KRW has an established recruitment protocol which has been very successful for many years.  
Working with the City Council, and/or city staff, KRW would follow this process:  

a. Due to the current Coronavirus travel and meeting restrictions, conduct two separate 
video conference meetings1: 

 With members of the City leadership team to obtain their input on the skills, 
abilities and attributes they would like to see in the new Administrator. 

 If requested, compose a questionnaire for community input. 

 With City Council to provide feedback from the input received from city staff 
and to compile input/information from them relative to the skills, abilities, 
attributes desired in the new City Administrator. 

 After consideration of the above feedback, work with city staff to prepare an 
updated job description for the City Administrator position.  
 

b. Develop an advertising profile for the position announcement and discussion with 
potential candidates. This will highlight the historical background and attractions of the 
City of Ouray and an overview of the position and preferred qualifications. 

 
c. Based on this information, KRW will draft the City Administrator position 

announcement, submit it to the City for approval, and post the announcement 
regionally and nationally in key recruiting sites, including the KRW “Open-Positions” 
site and the City of Ouray website for a minimum of 30 days.  

 
d. Candidates will be directed to submit application materials to KRW Associates 

electronically. KRW will conduct an initial screening of applicants to ensure minimum 
qualifications are satisfied.  

 
e. During the open period KRW will evaluate applicant resumes as well as perform 

outreach to contacts and solicit potential suitable candidates. 

                                                 
1 Unless otherwise agreed on the reference in this proposal to “meet” or “meetings” relates to video conferencing. 

74



3 

 

 KRW maintains a current file of competitive candidates for recruiting 
purposes.   

 
f. Rank the resumes in three “tiers” (Tier 1.a”, “Tier 1.b.”, etc.), based on credentials and 

qualifications, in descending order for the City Council review. Confer with the City 
Council to select the top 8 candidates to move to the next phase of the process. 

 
g. KRW will conduct telephonic interviews and perform due diligence including a national 

criminal background and social media check on the top candidates and provide a 
written report to the City Council to review and consider before selecting the finalists.  

 
h. Meet with the City Council to discuss candidates and select 4 to 6 finalists. 

 
i. Perform reference checks on the final candidates and prepare a written report for 

Council review.  
 

j. Work with the City in designing the assessment/interview process and assisting the 
City staff in organizing candidate visits.  The specific process will be discussed with the 
Council but may include a community reception and panel interviews.  

 
k. Administer the assessment/interview process in Ouray and assist with final candidate 

deliberations.  

  Note: The Assessment/Interview process may need to be adjusted 
depending on the State/National travel and social-distancing restrictions.  
 

Potential candidates:  Our firm has a database of both assistant and town/city 
managers/administrators who have previously applied for open positions. In addition, we have 
contact with a vast network of municipal executives.  They call our firm regularly, updating us 
on potential candidates, and checking for opportunities for themselves.  Also, we are in 
constant contact with “sitting” managers/administrators, seeking their knowledge of the best 
professional candidates.  The database is also used for targeted mailing regarding current 
opportunities. KRW uses a tiered ranking process to present all candidates to the appointing 
authority.  Unlike many firms who merely arrive with eight to ten names, we use a proven 
methodology that simplifies the task for the appointing authority while retaining quality and 
creditability.  We understand the job, the public sector, and the needs of the hiring authority 
and the community.  Ninety percent of our placements are still in the job or have tenure of at 
least five years.   

  
Scope of Work and Schedule 
 

1. April - 2020 – Finalize Letter of Agreement (LOA)2  
   

• As outlined above, conduct a series of meetings to receive input from the city 
leadership team and City Council and develop a clear, detailed set of criteria to form a 
candidate profile/recruiting specification for the City Administrator position that will be 
used to attract and evaluate high caliber applicants.  

  Note: As referenced above, to expedite the process and accommodate schedules it is 
recommended that these meetings take place either telephonically or by using Skype 
or Zoom teleconferencing.  

• Design an appropriate advertising/communication/marketing campaign to include:  

                                                 
2 The proposed schedule may be advanced if a contract is completed by mid-April. 

75



4 

 

o Developing an agency profile and recruitment profile to targeted audiences and 
using social media and online media, as appropriate  

o Contacting professional associations  
o Advertising in professional and industry journals and publications (ICMA, CML, 

CCCMA, NEOGOV, GovJobs, Linkedin, Twitter and Utah, Arizona, New Mexico 
and Wyoming municipal leagues).  
 Posting on the KRW Associates website  
 Posting on the City of Ouray website  

o Identifying and aggressively marketing the position to potential candidates in the 
field, using KRW’s established database and professional contacts  

o Additional methodologies may be included subsequent to the needs and desires of 
the Council being more fully identified.  

 
2. May - 2020 – Upon Council approval KRW will post the position for 30 days.  

All applications will be submitted to KRW electronically. Applications will consist of 1) 
Cover letter, 2) Current Resume (with salary history), and 3) Six professional references.    
KRW will receive and initially screen applications and resumes for minimum requirements, 
using the City approved pre-established criteria to include the KRW tiered ranking process, 
KRW will provide the Town with a status of the specifics of the search on a weekly basis 
throughout the duration of the process, to include the posting period.  
 
KRW will handle administrative details such as correspondence with candidates and 
inquiries about their candidacy.  
 

3. Early June - 2020 – Review and evaluate all candidate resumes as submitted to KRW.  
Conduct Internet searches and/or place calls to gather information on candidates as 
needed. Rank the resumes in three “tiers” (Tier 1.a”, “Tier 1.b.”, etc.), based on credentials 
and qualifications, in descending order for the Council review. Confer with the Council to 
select the top 8 candidates to move to the next phase of the process. 

 
4. Mid-June - 2020 – KRW will conduct telephonic interviews and perform due diligence 

including a national criminal background and social media check on the semi-finalist 
candidates and provide a written report to the Council to review and consider before 
selecting the finalists.  

 
5. Late June - 2020 -- KRW will prepare a summary report on each of the semi-finalists with 

the results of the due-diligence process and submit to the Council for review. Meet with the 
board to produce a list of 4-6 finalists.  (Unless conditions significantly improve relative to 
the Coronavirus this conference with the Council will be either a conference call or 
Skype/Zoom session). 

 
6. Late June - 2020 – Design interview and assessment materials including sample interview 

questions and/or assessment exercises, a “suitability” rating template, as well as note-taking 
sheets.  Administer an interview process on-site in the for final candidates. 

 
7. Early July - 2020 – Assist the City with a job offer to the selected candidate. 

 
Summary:  In summary, the scope of work for KRW Associates LLC includes conferring with the 
Council to develop a candidate profile, completing a national advertisement, receiving and reviewing 
candidate application materials, resume evaluation, screening, and ranking, the administration of an 
assessment (interview) process, and a reference check on the final candidates.   
 

76



5 

 

Thank you for consideration of our proposal and potential working agreement by use of this Letter of 
Agreement. 
 
Sincerely, 

L. C. Kramer 
Managing Partner 
KRW Associates LLC 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
Signed: 
________________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature      Lorne C. Kramer 
City of Ouray, CO                                    Date  Managing Partner                                   
Date                                   

            KRW Associates, LLC   
     

 
 

 

            

 

 

 

             

 

 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

77



6 

 

            Attachment A 

 

PROJECT COST SHEET  

 

         THE CITY OF OURAY, COLORADO – 2020  

                             CITY ADMINISTRATOR - RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION PROCESS  

 

1. Oversight and administration of executive search process...........................................$7,500.00  
Includes overall project administration; preparation of the ideal candidate profile for advertising; potential candidate 

outreach; reviewing and screening resumes; telephone and e-mail follow up; due-diligence on semifinalists; development 

of candidate finalist lists; and reference checks and recommendations to the City Council regarding both semi-finalists 

and finalist candidates. 

  

2. Assessment System.……………………………….………………………….……………….... $3,000.00 
Includes use of all custom written materials, research support materials, training, and process administration of    

exercises to candidates/finalists.  Exercises may include structured interviews with city council, staff and community 

members as well as presentation exercises.  

 

4.  Assessor training, included in set fee......................................................................….... No charge  

                     

5.  Final Candidate orientation included in set fee……........................................................No charge  

  

6. Travel……………………………………………………………………………….…………Not Applicable 

  

7. Meals…………………………………………………………………………….………….…. …. No charge 

  

8. Copying/Printing of Assessment Materials……………………………….……………. ….No charge  

  
     .  

* ESTIMATED CONSULTANT COSTS FOR PROJECT..........................................................$10,500.00  

  

There is no consultant per-diem costs.  Costs of advertisements in professional publications or websites, or 

other expenses related to candidates will be the responsibility of the City of Ouray. In addition, the City of Ouray 

would bear the cost of candidate travel and lodging if necessary.   

WARRANTY: KRW Associates is confident of their capacity to produce a quality group of candidates and 

ultimately the selection of the right person for the position. In the event the person selected by the City of Ouray 

does not complete a full year in the position due to performance related issues, KRW Associates will complete a 

follow up process charging only for travel and related expenses 

 

 

 

 

 

78



7 

 

                                                                     

Attachment B 

                    References for Projects of Similar Scope in the past two years: 
 
Town of Bayfield, CO 
Executive Search: Town Manager 
Matthew Salka, Mayor 
Kathleen Cathcart, Town Clerk 
970-884-9544 
 
City of Brighton, CO  
Executive Search:  City Manager 
Clint Blackhurst, City Council Member 
303-655-2267 

           kbsurine@brightonco.gov 
 
           City of Cripple Creek, CO  
           Executive Search: City Manager 
           Carol Stotts, H.R./Risk Management Director 
           (719)-689-3469 
            cstotts@cripple-creek.co.us 

 
Town of Wellington, CO  
Executive Searches:  Assistant Town Administrator, Town Administrator and 
Public Works Director 
Ed Cannon, Town Administrator 
(970) 568-3381 
cannonel@wellingtoncolorado.gov 

 
City of Fort Collins, CO  
Executive Search: Chief of Police 
Darin Atteberry, City Manager 
970-221-6505 
datteberry@fcgov.com 

 
Town of Breckenridge, CO  
Executive Search: Chief of Police 
Rick Holman, Town Manager 
970-547-3166 
rickh@townofbreckenridge.com 
 
City of Ferndale, Michigan  
Executive Search, Fire Chief 

           Joseph Gacioch, City Manager 
           City of Ferndale, MI 
           (248) 546-2360 
             jgacioch@ferndalemi.gov 

 
City of Cody, WY  
Executive Search: Public Works Director 
Barry Cook, City Administrator 
(307) 527-7511 
bcook@cityofcody.com 

79

mailto:kbsurine@brightonco.gov
mailto:cstotts@cripple-creek.co.us
mailto:cannonel@wellingtoncolorado.gov
mailto:datteberry@fcgov.com
mailto:rickh@townofbreckenridge.com
mailto:jgacioch@ferndalemi.gov
mailto:bcook@cityofcody.com


8 

 

 
                                                                        Attachment C 
 

Qualifications of Key Personnel: 

Lorne Kramer served as the City Manager of Colorado Springs, Colorado from 2001 to 2007, a municipality of 
over 425,000 people.  Prior to this appointment, he was the Deputy City Manager and the Police Chief for 11 
years.  During his years as City Manager, Mr. Kramer was successful in reorganizing municipal operations; 
addressing fiscal shortfalls; orchestrating the successful passage and implementation of the Public Safety Sales 
Tax initiative focused on increased public safety projects throughout the city; gaining citizen support for the Rural 
Transportation Authority; implementing the Storm-water Enterprise and enhancing the Development Review 
Process. 
 
While the Chief of Police, the Colorado Springs Police Department received national recognition for many 
progressive and innovative programs and accomplishments in the areas of crime reduction, gang violence and 
community partnerships.   He was both President and Vice President of the national Police Executive Research 
Forum (PERF) and President of the Colorado Association of Chiefs of Police.  He was appointed by the Governor 
of Colorado to the Peace Officer Standards and Training Board (POST) and the Drug Control Systems Board.  
 
His academic accomplishments include a master’s degree in Public Administration from the University of 
Southern California, and a bachelor’s degree from the University of Redlands, California graduating with honors 
from both institutions.  He is also a graduate of the University of Southern California’s Management Policy 
Institute, California’s Law Enforcement Command College, the National Executive Institute and the Rocky 
Mountain Leadership Institute.  Mr. Kramer is the former Executive Director of the Colorado Springs Leadership 
Institute. He has been involved in executive search since 2007 and has successfully placed city and town 
managers, police chiefs, fire chiefs, public works directors and many others. 
 
Dr. Jerry Williams spent over 20 years as a public sector executive, as well as directing key leadership programs 
at three nationally recognized universities.  Dr. Williams has over 30 years of experience in the criminal justice 
field and has served as police chief in Arvada and Aurora, Colorado. Dr. Williams was a graduate of the FBI’s 
National Academy (114 Session.)  
 
Dr. Williams is a Past President of the Police Executive Research Forum and former Chair of the National 
Commission on Law Enforcement Accreditation.  Dr. Williams was a member of the National Institute of Justice 
series Perspectives on Policing held at the John F. Kennedy School of Government, Harvard University.  Williams 
is a former Principal Associate for the Institute for Law and Justice, a public sector criminal justice consulting firm 
located in the Washington, D.C. area.   
 
Jerry has held Executive Director and faculty positions at three universities, the Blackwood Law Enforcement 
Management Institute of Texas at Sam Houston State University, the Administrative Officer Management 
Program at North Carolina State University, and the Executive Leadership Master’s Program at the University of 
Colorado Denver.  In 2009, Dr. Williams was a panel member in the University of Denver’s Strategic Issues year 
long program entitled Architecture for Immigration Reform: Fitting the Pieces of Public Policy. 
 
He has been involved in executive search consulting since 2001.  He holds a DPA from the University of Colorado 
Denver, a master’s degree in Criminal Justice from the University of Colorado Denver, and a BA in History and 
Sociology from Metropolitan State University of Denver.  
 
Sam Mamet was the Executive Director of the Colorado Municipal League (CML) for 14 years until his retirement 

in March 2019. He was on the League staff for over 40 years. He joined KRW Associates LLC in June 2019. As 

the Executive Director of CML he provided technical assistance, legislative advocacy, training and policy 

development for the 270 members of CML. His professional experience includes management analyst for Clark 

County, Nevada and the Nevada Legislature; lobbying in the Nevada, legislature; research analyst for the 

Pennsylvania Local Government Commission of the Pennsylvania Legislature; and research analyst for the 

Governmental Research Institute of Cleveland, Ohio. 

80



9 

 

He holds a master’s degree in public administration from the University of Colorado, Boulder and a bachelor’s 

degree in political science from Albright College, Reading Pennsylvania. He is a long-time member of the 

International City Managers Association and is the past co-chair of the ICMA Governmental Affairs Policy 

Committee. He has served on the National League of Cities Board of Directors.  

He has received numerous awards recognizing his contributions to public service and recently received the 

lifetime achievement award from the Colorado City County Managers Association for his many contributions to 

local government. Over his 14 years as the Executive Director of CML he assisted numerous communities in 

recruiting, evaluating and supporting both city and town managers throughout Colorado and adjoining states. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81



10 

 

Attachment D 

                         SAMPLE LIST OF CLIENTS 
EXECUTIVE SEARCH, ORGANIZATIONAL ASSESSMENTS, AND TRAINING LOCATIONS 

CITY OF AMARILLO (TX) 

CITYOF AVON (CO) 

CITY OF BOULDER (CO) 

CITY OF BRECKENRIDGE (CO) 

CITY OF BRIGHTON (CO) 

CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD (CO) 

CITY OF CASTLE ROCK (CO) 

CITY OF COMMERCE CITY (CO) 

CITY OF CRAIG (CO) 
CITY OF CRIPPLE CREEK (CO) 

CITYOF DILLON (CO) 

CITY OF DURANGO (CO) 

TOWN OF EDGEWATER (C0) 

EL PASO COUNTY, CO 

CITY OF ENGLEWOOD (CO) 

CITY OF EVANS (CO) 

CITY OF FORT COLLINS (CO) 

CITY OF FORT LUPTON (CO) 

CITY OF FERNDALE (MI) 

CITYOF FRISCO (CO) 

CITY OF GEORGETOWN (CO) 

CITY OF GOLDEN (CO) 

TOWN OF GRANBY (CO) 

CITY OF GRAND JUNCTION (CO) 

CITY OF GREENWOOD VILLAGE (CO) 

CITYOF JACKSON (WY) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY (CO) 

JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD (WY) 

CITY OF LARAMIE (WY) 

CITY OF LONE TREE (CO) 

CITY OF MANITOU SPRINGS (CO) 

CITY OF MENLO PARK (CA) 

CITYOF MILLIKEN (CO) 

CITY OF MONTE VISTA (CO) 

TOWN OF MONUMENT (CO) 

TOWN OF MORRISON (CO) 

CITY AND COUNTY OF MONTROSE (CO) 

PITKIN COUNTY (CO) 

PUEBLO COUNTY (CO) 

CITY OF SHERIDAN (WY) 

CITYOF SILVERTHORNE (CO) 

SOUTH METRO FIRE DISTRICT (CO) 

CITYOF TELLURIDE (CO) 

CITYOF TRINIDAD (CO) 

TOWN OF WELLINGTON (CO) 

CITY OF WHEAT RIDGE (CO) 

TOWN OF WINDSOR (CO) 

TOWN OF VAIL (CO) 

WEST METRO FIRE DISTRICT (CO) 

82



 

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130, Northbrook, Illinois 60062 
847.380.3240   |    GovHRUSA.com      

  
EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT  •  INTERIM STAFFING  •  MANAGEMENT AND HUMAN RESOURCE CONSULTING 

 

 
  April 1, 2020 
 
Ms. Melissa Drake 
Deputy City Administrator 
City of Ouray 
320 6th Ave. 
Ouray, Colorado  
 
Dear Ms. Drake: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with a proposal for the City Administrator recruitment and 
selection process for the City of Ouray. GovHR USA (“GovHR”) prides itself on a tailored, personal 
approach to executive recruitment and selection, able to adapt to your specific requirements for the position. 
 
A note about COVID-19 – GovHR USA makes extensive use of technology for video interviews with 
candidates and can utilize this same technology for meetings with clients.  We are carefully 
monitoring recommendations from the federal, state and local governments and working with 
clients on alternatives to in person meetings. We are fully operational and can work with you via 
video and by utilizing electronic files.  
 
Qualifications and Experience 
 
GovHR is a public management consulting firm serving municipal clients and other public-sector entities on 
a national basis. Our headquarters offices are in Northbrook, Illinois. We are a certified Female Business 
Enterprise in the State of Illinois and work exclusively in the public sector. We have 11 full time and 8 part 
time employees and 27 project consultants.  GovHR offers customized executive recruitment services and 
completes other management studies and consulting projects for communities.   
 
GovHR is led by Heidi Voorhees, President, and Joellen Cademartori, Chief Executive Officer. Our 
consultants are experienced executive recruiters who have conducted over 600 recruitments, working with 
cities, counties, special districts and other governmental entities of all sizes throughout the country. In 
addition, we have held leadership positions within local government, giving us an understanding of the 
complexities and challenges facing today’s public-sector leaders. GovHR consultants have conducted more 
than 140 top manager-level recruitments (City Manager, County Administrator, etc.) since the firm’s 
inception in 2009. A list of the past top manager recruitments and a list of our current recruitments is 
included with this proposal. 
 
Consultant Assigned 
 
GovHR Vice President Katy Rush Stevens will be responsible for your recruitment and selection process. 
Her biography is attached to this Proposal and her contact information is: telephone 630-432-2677; email 
address Krush@govhrusa.com. 
  
Ms. Rush served as the Village Administrator of Woodridge from 2009 - 2017 and as the Village Manager 
of Riverside from 1990 – 2009. She has worked on several executive recruitments since retiring from 
Woodridge and joining GovHR in 2017, including most recently the Village Managers of Orland Park and 
Barrington, Illinois. She is currently working on the recruitment for the Senior Housing Manager for Fort 
Collins, CO and the Village Administrator of Mundelein, IL. A complete list of Ms. Rush’s and GovHR’s 
clients is available on our website at www.govhrusa.com. Ms. Rush will be assisted by a home office 
Recruitment Coordinator and a Reference Specialist. 

83

mailto:Krush@govhrusa.com
http://www.govhrusa.com/


  Page 2 
 

  

References 
 
Wellington, CO (Finance Director, current) – 
Katy Rush 
Kelly Houghteling, Interim Town Administrator 
970-556-1820 
houghtkm@wellingtoncolorado.gov 
 
Fort Collins, CO (Housing Manager, current) – 
Katy Rush 
Jacqueline Kozak Thiel, Chief Sustainability 
Officer 
970-416-2170 
Jkozak-thiel@fcgov.com 
 
Englewood, CO (City Manager, 2019) – Heidi 
Voorhees 
Mayor Linda Olson 

303-503-4020 
 
Orland Park, Illinois (Village Manager, 2018) – 
Kathleen Rush 
Stephana Przybylski, Human Resources Director 
(708) 403-6166 
sprzbylski@orlandpark.org 
 
Eagle, CO  
(Community Development Director, 2019) - 
Sarah McKee 
(Town Manager, 2017) – Cristi Musser  
Lynette Horan, Human Resources Director 
970-328-9618 
Lynette.horan@townofeagle.org 

lolson@englewoodco.gov 
 
Scope of Work 
 
A typical recruitment and selection process takes approximately 175 hours to conduct. At least 50 hours of 
this time is administrative, including advertisement placement, reference interviews, and due diligence on 
candidates. We believe our experience and ability to professionally administer your recruitment will provide 
you with a diverse pool of highly qualified candidates for your City Administrator search. GovHR clients are 
informed of the progress of a recruitment throughout the entire process.  We are always available by mobile 
phone or email should you have a question or need information about the recruitment. GovHR suggests 
the following approach to your recruitment, subject to your requests for modification: 
 
Phase I – Position Assessment, Position Announcement and Brochure Development  
 

 One-on-one or group interviews will be conducted with elected officials, appointed officials, staff, 
business community representatives and any other stakeholders identified by the client to develop 
our Recruitment Brochure. The Proposal assumes up to two full days and one night depending 
upon the client's needs. We can also utilize dedicated email and surveys to obtain feedback from 
stakeholder groups.   Previous clients have invited community leaders to meetings with our 
consultants; other clients have developed surveys for the community or organization; and some 
clients request we use a combination of these methods to fully understand community and 
organizational needs and expectations for the next City Administrator. We will work closely with 
you on the format that best meets your needs. 

 Development of a Position Announcement. 
 Development of a detailed Recruitment Brochure for your review and approval.  
 Agreement on a detailed Recruitment Timetable – a typical recruitment takes 90 days from the 

time you sign the contract until you are ready to appoint the finalist candidate.  
 
Phase II – Advertising, Candidate Recruitment and Outreach  
 
We make extensive use of social media as well as traditional outreach methods to ensure a diverse and 
highly qualified pool of candidates.  In addition, our website is well known in the local government industry 
– we typically have 5,000 visits to our website each month.  Finally, we develop a database customized to 
your recruitment and can do an email blast to thousands of potential candidates. Phase II will include the 
following steps: 

84

mailto:Jkozak-thiel@fcgov.com
mailto:Lynette.horan@townofeagle.org
mailto:lolson@englewoodco.gov


  Page 3 
 

  

 Placement of the Position Announcement in appropriate professional online publications. In 
addition to public sector publications and websites, outreach will include LinkedIn and other private 
sector resources. We can provide the City with a list of where we intend to place the position 
announcement, if requested.  

 The development of a database of potential candidates from across the country unique to the 
position and to the City, focusing on the leadership and management skills identified in Phase I as 
well as size of organization, and experience in addressing challenges and opportunities also 
outlined in Phase I. This database can range from several hundred to thousands of names 
depending on the parameters established for the outreach. Outreach will be done in person, and 
through e-mail and telephone contacts. GovHR consultants have extensive knowledge of the 
municipal government industry and will personally identify and contact potential candidates. With 
more than 600 collective years of municipal and consulting experience among our consultants, we 
often have inside knowledge about candidates. 

 
Phase III – Candidate Evaluation and Screening  
 

 Review and evaluation of candidates’ credentials considering the criteria outlined in the 
Recruitment Brochure. Candidates will be interviewed by video to fully grasp their qualifications, 
experience and interpersonal skills. The interviews include asking specific questions about their 
experiences and skill sets as well as asking questions specific to the City Administrator. We will 
ask follow up questions and probe specific areas. By utilizing video interviews we will have an 
assessment of their verbal skills and their level of energy for and interest in the position. 
 

 Formal and informal references and an internet/social media search of each candidate will be 
conducted to further verify candidates’ abilities, work ethic, management and leadership skills, 
analytical skills, interpersonal skills, ability to interact with the media, and any areas identified for 
improvement.   (See p. 8 of this proposal for a more detailed description of the background and 
reference checks we conduct on our semi-finalists). 

 All résumés will be acknowledged and contacts and inquiries from candidates will be personally 
handled by GovHR, ensuring that the City’s process is professional and well regarded by all who 
participate.   

 
Phase IV – Presentation of Recommended Candidates  
 

 GovHR will prepare a Recruitment Report that presents the credentials of those candidates most 
qualified for the position. You will advise us of the number of reports you will need for the individuals 
involved in this phase of the recruitment and selection process. We provide a binder which contains 
the candidate’s cover letter and résumé. In addition, we prepare a “mini” résumé for each 
candidate, so that each candidate's credentials are presented in a uniform way. GovHR will provide 
you with a log of all candidates who applied. You may also review all the résumés, if requested.   

 GovHR will meet with you on-site to review the Recruitment Report and expand upon the 
information provided. The report will arrive two to three days in advance of the meeting, giving you 
the opportunity to fully review it. In addition to the written report, we will spend 2 to 3 hours 
discussing the candidates by reviewing their skype interviews and providing excerpts from the 
references we will have conducted on the individuals.  

 
Phase V –Interviewing Process  
 
 After the Recruitment Report is presented, the Interviewing Process will be finalized including the 

discussion of any specific components you deem appropriate, such as a writing sample or oral 
presentation.  

 GovHR will develop the first and second round interview questions for your review and comment. 
GovHR will provide you with interview books that include the credentials each candidate submits, 
a set of questions with room for interviewers to make notes, and evaluation sheets to assist 
interviewers in assessing the candidate’s skills and abilities.    

85



  Page 4 
 

  

 GovHR will work with you to develop an interview schedule for the candidates, coordinating travel 
and accommodations. In addition to a structured interview with the City, the schedule will 
incorporate a tour of Ouray’s facilities and interviews with senior staff, if the City so desires.   

 Once candidates for interview are selected, additional references will be contacted, along with 
verification of educational credentials, criminal court, credit, and motor vehicle and records checks.  

 GovHR recommends a two-step interviewing process with (typically) five or six candidates 
interviewed in the first round. Following this round, we strongly suggest that two or three candidates 
are selected for second round interviews. Again, we will prepare a second round of interview 
questions and an evaluation sheet. 

 GovHR consultants will be present for all the interviews, serving as a resource and facilitator. 
 
Phase VI – Appointment of Candidate  
 

 GovHR will assist you as much as you request with the salary and benefit negotiations and drafting 
of an employment agreement, if appropriate.   

 GovHR will notify all applicants of the final appointment, providing professional background 
information on the successful candidate. 

 
One-Way Video Interviews 
 
Candidates we recommend for your consideration can complete a one-way video interview with 3 to 5 
questions that will be recorded for an additional fee. The Council can then review these interviews at your 
convenience prior to make a decision on which candidates to invite for interview. 
 
Recruitment Schedule 
 
A detailed recruitment schedule will be provided in Phase I. The recruitment and selection process typically 
takes 90 days from the time the contract is signed until the candidate is appointed.  We can work with you 
on a shorter process, should you so desire. Our typical recruitment process includes the following 
milestones and deliverables: 
 

 Weeks 1 - 2 On-site interviews of City officials and staff, development and approval of 
recruitment brochure 
Deliverable: recruitment brochure 

 Weeks 3 - 8 Placement of professional announcements; candidate identification, 
screening, interview and evaluation by consultant 

 Week 9 Consultant recommendation to the City of qualified candidates  
Deliverable: recruitment report  

 Week 10 Selection of candidate finalists by the City; additional  
background and reference checks, report preparation and presentation 
Deliverable: interview reports including suggested questions 
and evaluation sheets 

 Weeks 11-12 Interviews of selected finalist candidates; recommendation of final candidate; 
negotiation, offer, acceptance and appointment 
 

 

RECRUITMENT FEE, including all expenses and advertising *$24,500 
 
**This fee does not include travel and accommodations for candidates interviewed. Recruitment brochures are 
produced as electronic files. Printed brochures can be provided, if requested, for an additional cost of $900. 
 

86



  Page 5 
 

  

The above cost proposal is predicated on three consultant visits to the City; the first for the recruitment 
brochure interview process (up to two full days and one night, depending upon the client’s needs; if additional 
days are needed they will be billed at $500 per half day and $950 for a full day, plus additional hotel charges, 
if required); the second to present recommended candidates; and the third for the candidate interview 
process.  Any additional consultant visits requested by the City will be billed at $125/hour; $500 for a half day 
and $950 for a full day.  The additional visits may also result in an increase in the travel expenses and those 
expenses will be billed to the client. 
 
Payment for Fees and Services 
 
Professional fees and expenses will be invoiced as follows:   
 
1st Payment:   1/3 of the Recruitment Fee (invoice sent upon acceptance of our proposal). 
2nd Payment:   1/3 of the Recruitment Fee (invoice sent following the recommendation of candidates). 
Final Payment: 1/3 of the Recruitment Fee (invoice sent after recruitment is completed). 
 
Payment of invoices is due within thirty (30) days of receipt (unless the client advises that its normal 
payment procedures require 60 days.)  
 
GovHR Guarantee  
 
It is the policy of GovHR to assist our clients until an acceptable candidate is appointed to the position. 
Therefore, no additional professional fee would be incurred should the City not make a selection from the 
initial group of recommended candidates and request additional candidates be developed for interview 
consideration. Additional reimbursable expenses may be incurred should the situation require consultant 
travel to Ouray beyond the planned four visits. 
 
Upon appointment of a candidate, GovHR provides the following guarantee:  should the selected and 
appointed candidate, at the request of the City or the employee’s own determination, leave the employ of 
the City within the first 12 months of appointment, we will, if desired, conduct one additional recruitment for 
the cost of expenses and announcements only, if requested to do so within six months of the employee’s 
departure.  In addition, in accordance with the policy of our firm as well as established ethics in the executive 
search industry, we will not actively recruit the placed employees for a period of five years. 
 
 
We believe we have provided you with a comprehensive proposal; however, if you would like a service that 
you do not see in our proposal, please let us know. We can most likely accommodate your request.  This 
proposal will remain in effect for a period of six months from the date of the proposal. We look forward to 
working with you on this recruitment and selection process!  
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Judith Schmittgens 
Corporate Secretary and Compliance Manager 
GovHR USA 
 
Attachment: Consultant Biography 
                     List of Top Manager Recruitments 
                     List of Current Recruitments 
                      

87



  Page 6 
 

  

CONSULTANT BIOGRAPHY 
 
 

KATHLEEN F. RUSH 
Vice President, GovHR USA 
 
Kathleen F. Rush has over 30 years of experience as a local government management professional 
including Woodridge and Riverside, Illinois.  She is known for her extensive professional network. From 
2009 until 2017, Ms. Rush served as the Village Administrator in Woodridge, a progressive, vibrant, diverse 
community in south central DuPage County. During her tenure in Woodridge, Ms. Rush was responsible 
for an approximate $44.5 million budget and 126 full-time employees.   During her tenure in Woodridge 
intergovernmental cooperation and regional service arrangements were initiated.  Technology 
improvements, including a new phone system and a new Enterprise Resource System solution was initiated 
and implemented.  The use of social media as a key tool for community engagement advanced.  There was 
an improved commitment to infrastructure including the streets and water system.  She participated 
extensively at a leadership level in regional and County-wide agencies ensuring the implications of 
decisions were considered during decision making.  
 
Ms. Rush served as the Village Manager in Riverside, Illinois (a national historic landmark) from 1998 to 
2009.  Riverside is a unique, small town with a high demand for resident service and attention to historic 
preservation.  Designed by Frederick Law Olmsted, designer of Central Park, NY, the Village of Riverside 
presented a unique set of challenges and projects.  The community is known for its significant amount of 
open space, distinctive zoning and curvilinear streets.  The community retains its historic character that 
essentially has been unchanged since 1879.  The community is part of the National Park Service inventory 
of designated landmarks.  During her tenure, financial challenges provided a great deal of experience.  
Capital project financing, operational reductions and increased service demands were a focus.  Significant 
water, street, sewer, forestry projects were completed.  Significant grant funding assisted in the financial 
undertakings. The Village of Riverside provided parks/recreation and fire services in addition to the primary 
Village operations. 
 
Prior to serving in the Manager’s role in Riverside, Ms. Rush did serve as the Assistant Village Administrator 
in Woodridge where she was responsible for human resources, information technology, purchasing, 
agenda management, community relations, special events and Village Board support.  She served as the 
acting Director of Public Works and served as the project manager during the construction of a new Village 
Hall.  
 
Ms. Rush holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Political Science and a graduate degree in Public 
Administration from Northern Illinois University. She has served in various leadership roles in professional 
and civic associations including serving as President of the Illinois City/County Manager’s Association, 
President of the Illinois Municipal Management Assistants Association, and Chairperson of the 
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency. Ms. Rush presently serves as a member on the Board of 
Directors for the DuPage Federation on Human Services Reform.  She has recently completed a term on 
the Board of Advisor’s for the Northern Illinois University division of Public Administration and was on the 
Board of the DuPage Credit Union.  She was selected as the ASPA Administrator of the Year in 2014 and 
was selected to receive the ILCMA Lifetime Achievement Award named for Bob Morris in 2017.  
 
Professional Education, Training and Instruction 
 

● Bachelor of Science degree in Political Science 
● Graduate Degree in Public Administration, Northern Illinois University 

Professional Development and Speaking Engagements 
 

● ILCMA, panelist at various conferences 

88



  Page 7 
 

  

● IAMMA, panelist at various conferences 
● The Legacy Project, Panelist 2017 Annual Conference and luncheon speaker 

Memberships and Affiliations 
 

● Board member and secretary for the DuPage Credit Union 
● Board of Directors for the DuPage Federation on Human Services Reform, Vice Chairperson 
● Former President of the Board of Advisor’s for the Northern Illinois University division of Public 

Administration 
● Former President of the Illinois City/County Manager’s Association 
● Former President of the Illinois Municipal Management Assistants Association 
● Former Chairperson of the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency 
● Former member of the DuPage Mayors and Managers Association Executive Board, and 

Transportation Committee Chairperson 

Awards 
 

● ASPA Administrator of the Year in 2014 
● Robert B. Morris Lifetime Achievement Award, ILCMA, 2017 

Local Government Background 
 
Over 30 years’ experience as a local government management professional 

● Village Administrator, Village of Woodridge, IL  2009 – 2017 
● Village Manager, Village of Riverside, IL   1998 – 2009 
● Assistant Village Administrator, Woodridge, IL  1985 – 1998 

 
 

 
 
 
 

89



TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION  POPULATION YEAR

City Management Alaska Unalaska City Manager 4,768                 2017

Seward City Manager 2,693                 2019

Bethel City Manager 6,500                 2019

Homer City Manager (Professional Outreach) 5,300                 2019

Colorado Eagle Town Manager 6,739                 2017

Englewood City Manager 34,957              2019

Connecticut Cheshire Town Manager 29,261              2017

Enfield Town Manager 45,246              2015

Meriden City Manager 60,838              2018

East Hampton Town Manager 13,000              2019

Delaware Newark City Manager 33,398              2018

Florida Largo Assistant City Manager 82,244              2018

Georgia Decatur Assistant City Manager 24,000              2018

City Manager 24,000              2018

Illinois Algonquin Village Manager 30,046              2012

Arlington Heights Village Manager 75,100              2014

Bensenville Village Manager 20,703              2015

Bloomington City Manager 78,005              2018

Buffalo Grove Village Manager 42,909              2010

Carbondale City Manager 25,092              2011

Cary Village Administrator 18,713              2011

Clarendon Hills Village Administrator 8,572                 2014

Village Manager 8,572                 2010

Crest Hill City Administrator 20,837              2015

Decatur City Manager 76,178              2014

2018

Deputy City Manager 76,178              2019

DeKalb City Manager 44,862              2013

43,849              2018

Dixon City Manager 15,333              2015

East Moline City Administrator 21,300              2011

2016

East Peoria City Administrator 23,503              2016

Effingham City Administrator 12,384              2010

12,577              2018

Elmhurst City Manager 43,300              2010

Fox Lake Village Administrator 10,550              2013

Freeport City Manager 25,000              2017

Galesburg City Manager 33,706              2010

Glen Ellyn Assistant Village Manager 27,000              2013

Village Manager 27,000              2010

Glencoe Assistant Village Manager 8,723                 2015

Village Manager 8,723                 2013

Hanover Park Village Manager 38,510              2012

Highland Park City Manager 31,365              2011

Hinsdale Village Manager 16,816              2013

Homer Glen Village Manager 24,220              2011

Homewood Assistant Village Manager (Virtual) 19,464              2017

Inverness Village Administrator 7,400                 2013

Joliet City Manager 147,500            2013

2017

Top Manager Recruitments

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130 Northbrook, IL 60062

847.380.3240  Fax: 866.401-3100 GovHRusa.com 90



TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION  POPULATION YEAR

Top Manager Recruitments

City Management Illinois Kenilworth Village Manager 2,562                 2012

La Grange Assistant Village Manager (Virtual) 15,732              2017

La Grange  Village Manager 15,732              2017

Lake Bluff Assistant to the Village Manager 5,700                 2016

Lake Forest City Manager 19,375              2018

Lake Villa Village Administrator 8,774                 2013

Lake Zurich Village Manager 19,631              2015

Libertyville Village Manager 20,431              2016

Lincoln City Administrator 14,500              2014

Lincolnshire

Assistant Village Manager/Community 

Development Director 7,500                 2016

Village Manager 7,500                 2012

Lindenhurst Village Administrator 14,468              2017

Lombard Village Manager 43,165              2013

Marengo City Administrator 7,614                 2011

Mettawa Part-time Village Administrator 500                    2010

Mokena Village Administrator 19,042              2015

Moline City Administrator 43,100              2017

Monmouth City Administrator 9,444                 2014

Morton Grove Village Administrator 23,500              2011

Mt. Prospect Village Manager 54,771              2015

New Lenox Village Administrator 25,000              2011

Normal City Manager 54,264              2017

Oak Brook Village Manager 7,883                 2014

Oak Park

Assistant Village Manager/Human Resources 

Director 52,000              2019

Orland Park Village Manager 60,000              2016

2019

Pekin City Manager 33,223              2016

Princeton City Manager 7,700                 2011

River Forest Villlage Administrator 11,635              2010

Rock Island City Manager 39,684              2011

Schiller Park Village Manager 11,870              2015

Shorewood Village Administrator 17,495              2018

Skokie Village Manager 65,000              2013

Tinley Park Village Manager 58,000              2013

Volo Village Administrator 3,300                 2013

Washington City Administrator 15,700              2015

Wauconda Village Administrator 13,603              2013

13,896              2017

Winnetka Assistant Village Manager 12,422              2019

Woodridge Village Administrator 32,971              2017

Barrington Village Manager 10,455              2018

Willowbrook Village Administrator 8,967                 2019

Geneseo City Administrator (Virtual) 6,500                 2019

Princeton City Manager 7,700                 2019

Mundelein Village Administrator 31,385              2020

Centralia City Manager 13,000              2020

Indiana Munster Town Manager 23,603              2014

St. John Town Manager (Professional Outreach) 18,047              2020

Iowa Bondurant City Administrator 5,493                 2017

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130 Northbrook, IL 60062

847.380.3240  Fax: 866.401-3100 GovHRusa.com 91



TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION  POPULATION YEAR

Top Manager Recruitments

City Management Iowa Burlington City Manager 25,663              2011

Newton City Administrator 15,000              2016

Washington City Administrator 7,266                 2011

Webster City City Manager 8,000                 2016

West Liberty City Manager 3,736                 2013

Windsor Heights City Administrator 4,860                 2019

Maryland Greenbelt City Manager 23,753              2016

Hagerstown City Administrator 40,612              2015

Sykesville Town Manager 3,941                 2019

Massachusetts Cambridge City Manager 110,000            2016

Eastham Town Administrator 4,956                 2016

Provincetown Town Manager 2,990                 2015

Williamstown Town Manager 8,400                 2015

Michigan Alpena City Manager 10,410              2012

Caro City Manager 4,208                 2012

Delta Charter Township Township Manager 32,400              2014

Franklin Village Administrator (Virtual) 3,251                 2020

Hamtramck City Manager 21,752              2017

Kalamazoo City Manager 75,000              2013

Oakland Township Township Manager 16,779              2013

19,132              2018

Rochester  City Manager 13,000              2015

Eastpointe City Manager 32,673              2019

Economic Development Manager 32,673              2019

Troy Assistant City Manager 83,813              2019

City Manager 83,813              2018

Albion City Manager 8,337                 2018

Adrian City Administrator 20,676              2018

Ferndale City Manager 20,428              2019

Lincoln Park City Manager 36,665              2019

Royal Oak City Manager 59,112              2019

Minnesota Woodbury Assistant City Administrator 68,820              2017

Missouri Ferguson City Manager 21,111              2015

Maryland Heights City Administrator 27,436              2015

Republic City Administrator 15,590              2016

University City City Manager 35,172              2017

Assistant to the City Manager/Communications Director 35,172              2018

Assistant to the City Manager/Director of Human Resources35,172              2020

Wildwood City Administrator 35,517              2014

City Manager 35,524              2019

South Lyon City Manager 11,327              2018

Ballwin City Administrator 30,181              2020

New Hampshire Portsmouth City Manager 21,796              2019

New Jersey Waldwick Borough Administrator 9,800                 2015

New York Mamaroneck Village Manager 19,426              2018

North Carolina Fayetteville Assistant City Manager 210,000            2012

2017

2018

Ohio Oberlin City Manager 8,390                 2016

Pennsylvania Ferguson Township Township Manager 18,300              2017

Mt. Lebanon Municipal Manager 33,137              2015

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130 Northbrook, IL 60062

847.380.3240  Fax: 866.401-3100 GovHRusa.com 92



TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION  POPULATION YEAR

Top Manager Recruitments

City Management Pennsylvania South Fayette Township Township Manager 14,416              2018

Rhode Island North Kingston Town Manager 26,326              2015

Texas Burleson City Manager 36,990              2011

43,960              2018

Garland Assistant City Manager 233,206            2016

Missouri City Assistant City Manager 74,139              2019

McKinney Assistant City Manager 187,800            2019

Virginia Chesapeake City Manager 245,000            2019

Salem City Manager 25,643              2019

Virginia Beach Virginia  Beach City Manager 442,707            2019

West Virginia Morgantown City Manager 31,000              2016

Bridgeport City Manager 8,582                 2019

Wisconsin Baraboo City Administrator 12,048              2019

Bayside Assistant Village Manager 4,400                 2019

Bellevue Village Administrator 15,524              2018

Beloit City Manager 36,966              2015

Finance & Administrative Services Director 36,966              2014

Brown Deer Village Manager 12,061              2012

Burlington City Administrator 10,511              2014

Cedarburg Town Administrator 11,475              2015

Fon du Lac City Manager 43,021              2012

Fort Atkinson City Manager 12,300              2012

Franklin Director of Administation 36,155              2019

Glendale City Administrator 12,920              2016

Hartford City Administrator 14,251              2015

Hobart Village Administrator 8,500                 2016

Janesville City Manager 63,480              2013

Lake Geneva City Administrator 7,710                 2015

Lisbon Town Adminstrator/Clerk 2,521                 2014

Oak Creek City Administrator 35,243              2016

Plymouth Director of City Services 8,468                 2010

Prairie du Chien City Administrator 5,900                 2017

Princeton City Administrator 1,504                 2010

Racine City Administrator 78,200              2016

Richfield Village Administrator 11,500              2009

Rome Town Administrator 2,720                 2016

Shorewood Village Manager 13,331              2017

Waukesha City Administrator 71,000              2012

2014

West Bend City Administrator 31,000              2016

Whitewater City Manager 14,300              2012

Beloit (Town) Town Administrator 7,083                 2016

Rhinelander City Administrator 7,800                 2018

Monroe City Administrator 10,827              2020

County Management Arizona Yuma County County Administrator 203,000            2015

Florida Alachua County Human Resources Director 259,964            2017

Marion County County Administrator 337,362            2015

Pasco County County Administrator 475,502            2016

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130 Northbrook, IL 60062

847.380.3240  Fax: 866.401-3100 GovHRusa.com 93



TYPE STATE CLIENT POSITION  POPULATION YEAR

Top Manager Recruitments

County Management Florida Pinellas County Deputy County Administrator/Chief of Staff 970,600            2019

Illinois DeKalb County County Administrator 105,160            2012

Lake County Assistant County Administrator 703,462            2016

2017

County Administrator 703,462            2019

McHenry County Deputy County Administrator 310,000            2014

Rock Island County County Administrator 147,258            2014

2017

Tazewell County County Administrator 135,394            2014

Winnebago County County Admnistrator 290,600            2016

Michigan Grand Traverse County County Administrator 90,782              2017

Kent County County Administrator/Comptroller 636,369            2017

Lake County County Executive 11,386              2015

Muskegon County County Administrator 172,200            2014

South Carolina Beaufort County County Administrator 179,589            2018

Wisconsin Dunn County County Manager 44,122              2016

Eau Claire County County Administrator 101,400            2015

Executive Director Connecticut

Norwalk Redevelopment 

Agency Executive Director 89,005              2019

Illinois

Chicago Metropolitan 

Agency for Planning Executive Director Multi 2019

Northwest Illinois 

Development Alliance Executive Director/President-CEO Multi 2018

Illinois State Association of 

Counties Executive Director (Virtual) Multi 2018

Invest Aurora President/CEO Multi 2018

Bloomington-Normal 

Economic Development 

Council President/CEO Multi 2019

Greater Freeport Partnership 

IL Executive Director 25,000              2019

Washington

Puget Sound Clean Air 

Agency Air Quality Programs Division Director Multi 2018

Wisconsin

Luxembourg American 

Cultural Society (LACS) Executive Director Multi 2019

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130 Northbrook, IL 60062

847.380.3240  Fax: 866.401-3100 GovHRusa.com 94



 

630 Dundee Road, Suite 130, Northbrook, IL 60062 
847.380.3240   |  GovHRusa.com 

 
EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT         INTERIM STAFFING         MANAGEMENT AND HUMAN RESOURCE CONSULTING 

 

CURRENT EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENTS – March 2020

Austin, TX Public Health Medical Director 
Ballwin, MO City Administrator 
Barrington, IL Fire Chief 
Beloit, WI Fire Chief 
Bozeman, MT Supt of Water Reclamation 
Brookline, MA Public Works Commissioner 
Buffalo Grove, IL Finance Director 
Centralia, IL City Manager 
Centre Region Council of Govt Exec Director 
Cleveland Heights, OH Asst PW Director 
Cleveland Heights, OH Finance Director 
Collinsville, IL Chief Financial Officer 
Decatur, AL Director of Development 
Decatur, IL Community Development Director 
Des Plaines, IL Human Resources Director 
Effingham County Regional Growth Alliance 
  President/CEO 
Evanston, IL City Manager 
Fayetteville, NC City Architect 
Fayetteville, NC Engineering Division Manager 
Fayetteville, NC Stormwater Project Manager 
Fort Collins, CO Housing Manager 
Franklin Park, IL Building Director 
Franklin, MI Village Administrator 
Franklin, WI Director of Administration 
Franklin, WI Planning Manager 
Freeport, IL Director of Public Works 
GASB State Auditor 
Grafton, WI Police Chief 
Greater Freeport Partnership, IL Exec Director 
Green Mountain Transit, VT General Manager 
Hawthorne Woods, IL Chief Financial Officer 
Lincoln Park, MI City Manager 
Lisle, IL Police Chief 
Menomonee Falls, WI Fire Chief 
Monroe, WI City Administrator 
 

Mundelein, IL Village Administrator 
Muscatine, IA City Administrator 
Oakland County, MI Diversity & Equity Director 
Pinellas County, FL Assistant County   
   Administrator 
Roanoke, VA Police Chief 
Royal Oak, MI City Manager 
San Jose CA Director of Gaming 
South Norwalk Electric & Water, CT General   
   Manager 
Tampa, FL Customer Experience Director 
University City, Mo Human Resources Director 
Villa Park, IL Director of PW 
Villa Park, IL Director of Community     
   Development 
Virginia Beach, VA City Manager 
Virginia Beach, VA Chief of Police 
Waukesha, WI Police Chief 
Wellington, CO Finance Director 
West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch Center  
   Deputy Director 
Wheeling, IL Community Development Director 
Wheeling, IL Economic Development Director 
Wichita, KS Stormwater Superintendent 
Windsor Heights, IA City Administrator 
Woodbury, MN Community Development     
   Director 
Worcester Public Library, MA Executive Director 
 

95



 
 

 

 
PO Box 1642, Keller, TX  76244 817-337-8581 www.GovernmentResource.com 

 

April 3, 2020 

Mayor Nelson and City Council Members 
City of Ouray, Colorado 

RE: City Administrator Executive Recruitment 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist the City of Ouray in your search for a new 
City Administrator. SGR has the unique ability to provide a personalized and comprehensive recruitment 
to meet your needs, in addition to interim management services for your City Administrator position. I 
would like to draw your attention to a few key items that distinguish SGR from other recruitment firms: 

• SGR has over 50,000 email subscribers to our weekly “10 in 10 Update on Leadership and 
Innovation” e-newsletter. 

• SGR will send targeted emails to our database of over 4,000 senior executives in local government. 

• SGR’s job board (a separate website), where this position would also be posted, is the 2nd largest 
local government job board in the nation, with an average of over 15,000 unique visits each month 
and over 1,600 jobs listed at any given time. 

• SGR is intent on being a leader in executive recruitment, and we believe it is imperative to be 
proactive in our mission to build a workforce that represents the communities we serve. We 
continue to evaluate and improve our processes by embedding an equity and inclusion lens to 
our recruitment practices. 

• SGR provides a comprehensive social media marketing campaign that includes custom-made 
graphics and distribution on Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and LinkedIn. 

We recognize that the COVID-19 pandemic has created unique operating challenges for local 
governments in a myriad of ways, including recruitment efforts. SGR is rapidly investing in a variety of 
technologies that will allow a safe social distancing recruitment process. For example, one of the unique 
ways SGR has adapted to the current climate has been to implement live online interviews which allow 
multiple interview panels to conduct virtual face-to-face interviews from a variety of locations 
simultaneously. This addresses both the hesitation of candidates to travel and new work-from-home 
dynamics. This, along with other adaptations currently being implemented to modify and improve our 
standard process, will meet your needs in the current pandemic environment in ways no other firm is 
equipped to do. 

We are excited about the prospect of doing this recruitment for the City of Ouray, and we are available to 
visit with you at your convenience. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Ron Holifield, Chief Executive Officer 
Ron@GovernmentResource.com 
Cell: 214-676-1691 

96



	
	

Unique Qualifications 
 
Listening to Your Needs 
SGR works hard to help you define and articulate your needs, and we conduct a comprehensive 
recruitment that is unique to you. SGR devotes a tremendous amount of energy to actively listening to 
your organization and to understanding your unique culture and environment. 
 
Comprehensive Needs Assessment 
Finding qualified candidates is not difficult- the hard part is finding qualified candidates who are the right 
fit for your organization. SGR's executive recruiting services in this regard are unequaled. A leading-edge 
candidate and a safe harbor candidate often look the same on paper but will have profoundly different 
impacts on your organization. We will help you determine the difference. 
 
Semifinalist Recorded Online Interviews with Candidates 
SGR’s unique online recorded interview process allows City Council to see candidates in an interview 
setting prior to the finalist stage of the recruitment process. 
 
Comprehensive Media Reports 
One of the worst things that can happen for your organization is to be surprised by undisclosed 
information about a finalist. SGR produces a comprehensive media report on each finalist candidate. 
 
Accessibility 
Your recruiter is accessible at all times throughout the recruitment process and can be reached by you or 
candidates, even at night and on weekends, by cell phone or email. 
 
Approach 
 
A full-service recruitment typically entails the following steps:  

1. Organizational Inquiry and Analysis 
• Develop Project Plan and Timeline 
• Individual Interviews with City Council / Key Personnel / Community Leaders 
• Stakeholder Survey (if desired – supplemental service) 
• Development of Position Profile Brochure 

2. Advertising and Recruitment 
• Ad Placements, Social Media and Marketing of Position 

3. Initial Screening and Review 
• Management of Applications, Evaluation of Resumes 
• City Council Briefing to Facilitate Selection of up to 12 Semifinalists 

4. Evaluation of Semifinalist Candidates 
• Written Questionnaire 
• Recorded Online Interviews 
• Media Search Stage 1 
• City Council Briefing to Facilitate Selection of up to 6 Finalists 

5. Evaluation of Finalist Candidates 
• Comprehensive Media Search Stage 2 

97



	
	

• Comprehensive Background Investigation Report 
• First Year Game Plan (if desired)  
• Reference Checks 

6. Interview Process 
• Interviews and Deliberations 

7. Negotiations and Hiring Process 
• Determine the Terms of an Offer 
• Negotiate Terms and Conditions of Employment 

 
Stakeholder Engagement 
At the discretion of the Search Committee, we will work closely with your organization to engage 
stakeholders in the recruitment process. Our recommendation is that we design a specific stakeholder 
engagement process after we learn more about the organization and the community. Different 
approaches work best in different communities. We will collaborate with your organization to determine 
which option, or combination of options, will be the most effective for the unique needs of the 
organization.  
 
Pricing (valid through July 15, 2020) 
 
All-Inclusive Maximum Price 
Professional Services Fee:      $ 18,500 
Expenses Not-to-Exceed:     $   8,000  
All-Inclusive, Not-to-Exceed Maximum Price:   $ 26,500* 
 
Expenses Not-to Exceed 
SGR does not bill the client for any expenses except for those explicitly detailed herein. Items included in 
the Expenses Not-to-Exceed include: 

• Professional production of a high-quality brochure. This brochure (typically 4 pages) is produced 
by SGR’s graphic designer for a flat fee of $1,500.  

• Marketing and Ad Placements: 
o Announcement in SGR’s 10 in 10 Leadership and Innovation e-newsletter 
o Email blast to SGR’s profession-specific opt-in subscriber list 
o Featured post on SGR’s website 
o Featured ad on SGR’s job board 
o Promotions on SGR’s social media pages – Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, Instagram 
o Ad placements with one national association and one state association. These two ads 

are billed at actual cost, with no markup for overhead. Additional ad placements, or the 
organization’s choice, will be billed over and above the not-to-exceed maximum price. 

• Semifinalist Recorded Online interviews. There is a cost of $200 for each recorded online 
interview. SGR recommends conducting online interviews at the semifinalist stage (up to 12 
semifinalists). 

• Comprehensive Media Reports – Stage 2. There is a cost of $500 per candidate. SGR will conduct 
Stage 2 media searches on the finalist candidates (up to 6 finalists). 

• Comprehensive Background Investigation Reports. There is a cost of $400 per candidate for 
comprehensive background screening reports prepared by our licensed private investigations 

98



	
	

provider. SGR will conduct comprehensive background investigations on the finalist candidates 
(up to 6 finalists). 

• Travel for the Executive Recruiter (incurred for the benefit of the client). Meals are billed at a per 
diem rate of $10 for breakfast, $15 for lunch, and $25 for dinner. Mileage will be reimbursed at 
the current IRS rate. All other travel-related expenses are billed back at actual cost, with no 
markup for overhead. It is anticipated that travel will be limited due to COVID-19 situation. 

• Up to four (4) visits/trips by the Recruiter to the Organization. Any additional visits/trips by the 
Recruiter to the Organization will be billed over and above the not-to-exceed maximum price. It 
is anticipated that travel will be limited due to COVID-19 situation. 

 
*Supplemental Services 
The supplemental services listed below are not included in the maximum price above. These supplemental 
services include: 

• Printing of documents and materials. The reproduction costs for briefing materials for the 
governing body up to 10 binders, which include semifinalist and finalist materials, are billed at 26 
cents per copy, plus the cost of binders and shipping. Flash drives are billed at $10 each. Note: All 
materials will be submitted electronically as long as shelter-in-place conditions continue in the 
Dallas-Fort Worth area. 

• Candidate Travel (if applicable). Candidates are typically reimbursed directly by the client for 
travel expenses. If the client prefers a different arrangement for candidate travel, SGR will be glad 
to accommodate the client’s wishes.  

• Stakeholder Survey. SGR will conduct a Stakeholder Survey for $1,000. SGR provides 
recommended survey questions and sets up an online survey. Stakeholders are directed to a web 
page or invited to take the survey by email. A written summary of results is provided. 

• Additional Ad Placements. Additional ad placements, as approved by the organization, that are 
not included in the not-to-exceed expenses will be billed back at actual cost with no markup for 
overhead. 

• DiSC Assessments. There is a cost of $175 per candidate for the DiSC Management Profile. 
• Post-Hire Team Building Analysis. A half-day onsite workshop is $4,000, plus travel expenses if 

applicable, and $150 per person for I-OPT reports. 
• In the unexpected event the client shall request that unusual out of pocket expenses be incurred, 

said expenses will be reimbursed at the actual cost with no mark up for overhead. 
• If the client desires any supplemental services not mentioned in this section, an estimate of the 

cost and hours to be committed will be provided at that time, and no work shall be done without 
approval. Supplemental services will be billed out at $250 per hour. 

 
Service Guarantee 
SGR guarantees that you will be satisfied with the results of the recruitment process, or we will repeat the 
entire process at no additional professional fee until you find a candidate that you desire. Additionally, if 
you select a candidate (that SGR has fully vetted) who resigns or is released within 18 months of their hire 
date, SGR will repeat the process at no additional professional fee to the client. If the Organization 
circumvents SGR’s recruitment process and selects a candidate who did not participate in the full 
recruitment process, the service guarantee is null and void. We also guarantee that we will not directly 
solicit a candidate we bring to you for another job. 
 

99



	
	

Company Profile 
Strategic Government Resources, Inc. (SGR) was incorporated in 1999 and is fully owned by former City 
Manager Ron Holifield. Ron spent two high-profile decades in city management, which included service 
as City Manager in several cities. He founded SGR for the express purpose of helping local governments 
be more successful by recruiting, assessing, and developing innovative, collaborative, authentic leaders. 
We specialize in executive recruitment, training, leadership development, assessments, consulting, and 
various other services geared to promote innovation in local governments. 
 
SGR’s mission is to facilitate innovative leadership in local government. The simple fact is that in today’s 
world of limited resources, local governments must innovate to survive. SGR has been, and continues to 
be, a leader in spurring innovation in local government. SGR has 700 local government clients in 47 states 
for our recruitment, training, and leadership development business lines combined. 
 
Proposed Recruiter – Kurt Hodgen, Senior Vice President 
With over 30 years of local government experience, Kurt Hodgen joined SGR in 2017 as Senior Vice 
President. Most recently, from 2007 until his retirement, Kurt served as the City Manager for the City of 
Harrisonburg, Virginia, after having previously served as the Assistant City Manager beginning in 2001.  
From 1993 to 2001, Kurt was the Assistant County Administrator/Director of Public Works for Botetourt 
County, Virginia. Before that, Kurt served as the Town Manager for the Town of Narrows, Virginia.  
 
Kurt remains active in his professional associations and is currently a member of the International City 
and County Management Association (ICMA) and the Virginia Local Government Management Association 
(VLGMA). Kurt holds a Bachelor of Science in Public Administration and Political Science from James 
Madison University and is an ICMA Credentialed Manager. He is also a graduate of the Senior Executive 
Institute at the University of Virginia, the Utility Management Institute at Virginia Tech, and the Economic 
Development Institute at Virginia Tech.  
 
References 
 

Farrell Buller 
Deputy Town Manager 
Town of Erie, CO 
303-926-2792 
fbuller@erieco.gov  

Dan Wienheimer 
Fmr. Deputy County Manager, Routt County, CO 
Current City Manager in Newberg, Oregon 
503-537-1207 
Dan.Weinheimer@newbergoregon.gov  
 

Russ Forrest 
City Manager 
City of Gunnison, CO 
970-641-8171 
rforrest@gunnisonco.gov  

Heather Geyer 
City Manager 
City of Northglenn, CO 
303-450-8709 
hgeyer@northglenn.org  

 
Additional Information Online 
SGR Website: www.governmentresource.com 
SGR Executive Recruitment: www.governmentresource.com/executive-recruitment  
Open Recruitments: www.governmentresource.com/executive-recruitment/open-recruitments 
Executive Recruitment Clients: www.governmentresource.com/home/showdocument?id=274  
Sample Stage 2 Media Report: www.governmentresource.com/Sample_Media_Search_Redacted.pdf  

100



   

 

   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leadership is Key to the Sustainability of Any Organization 
 

Character, integrity, and the commitment of a leader inspires  
those in the workplace to go the extra mile and can greatly influence  

the team’s success in achieving its objectives. 
 

 

Finding great leaders is what we do! 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Proposal to provide  
recruitment services for  
the City of Ouray's next 

 City Administrator 
 

Executive Recruitment 
 

 Interim Staffing.  Application Software.  Job Board. 

 
101



 

 

1 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - EXPERIENCE  
 

 

Current Recruitments  
 

Arvada Fire Protection District, CO – Fire Chief 
Gunnison County Attorney's Office, CO – Deputy County Attorney 
Spokane County, WA – Chief Executive Officer 
City of South Lake Tahoe, CA – City Manager 
Bonner County, ID – Information Systems Manager 
City of Sheridan, WY – City Administrator 
City of Rawlins, WY – City Manager 
City of Monmouth, OR – City Manager 
City of Waldport, OR – City Manager 
City of Mt. Angel, OR – City Manager 
City of Lebanon, OR – City Manager 
City of Leavenworth, WA – City Administrator 
Yakima County Fire District 4, WA – Fire Chief 
City of Lincoln, NE – Fire Chief 
City of East Wenatchee, WA – Police Chief 
South Sound 911, WA – Executive Director 
MACC 911, WA – Executive Director 
Lynnwood Public Facilities District, WA – Executive Director 
 

References & Completed Recruitments   
 

Gunnison County, CO - County Manager, Director of Health & Human Services, Community 
Development Director, Airport Director, HR Director, Deputy County Attorney, IT Director 
Contact - County Manager, Matthew Birnie - 970.641.0248 
mbirnie@gunnisoncounty.org 
 

Front Range Fire Rescue, CO - Fire Chief 
Contact - Retired Chief, Ron Bateman - 970.227.6925 
rbateman@wrfr.com 
 

City of Gunnison, CO - Public Works Director, Parks & Recreation Director  
Contact - City Manager, Russ Forrest - 970.641.8171 
rforrest@gunnisonco.gov 
 

Lead Consultant 
 

STEVE WORTHINGTON  
Steve is a senior consultant for Prothman and brings over 30 years of successful leadership in 
local government and is currently serving his second 4-year term as a Council Member for the 
City of University Place, Washington, and is now serving as Mayor Pro Tem, as well. Prior to 
retirement after 6 years as the City Manager for the City of Fife, WA, Steve served as 
Community Development Director for six years in Fife and for nine years for the City of Cheney, 
WA.  Steve was also an economic development specialist for the Spokane WA Economic 
Development Council, a member of the Association of Washington Cities Legislative Task 
Force, and an Economic Development Board Tacoma/Pierce County Trustee. Steve has a 
Bachelor of Arts degree in Speech Communications from the University of Washington, and a 
Master of Public Administration degree from Eastern Washington University. 

 
 

102

mailto:charliepiper52@gmail.com


 

2 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Prothman has been in the business of finding highly qualified candidates for placement in local 
government organizations of various sizes with varying political ideologies for 17 years.  We 
have placed managers in small organizations like Yachats, Oregon, population 800, to large 
counties like King County, Washington, population 2+ million.  We understand politics, council 
and board dynamics and community passion, and we are experts in facilitating. We have 
designed our recruitment process so that all stakeholders are included, listened to and treated 
with respect. Our company takes pride in and stakes its reputation on finding qualified 
candidates who are the right “fit” for our clients.   
 

Our strategy is to cast the widest net possible to ensure a diverse, qualified applicant pool. We 
have an aggressive local and national advertising campaign and our extensive databases allow 
us to mail the job announcement directly to employees in every city and county in the US. Our 
recruitment process emphasizes "fit" and we take as much time as needed to meet with your 
team so that we can learn and understand the experience, qualities and personality traits 
required for candidates to be successful within your unique organization and community. 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1.  Develop a Tailored Recruitment Strategy 
 

Project Review 
The first step will be to: 

♦ Review the scope of work and project schedule 
♦ Review job description  
♦ Review compensation and decide if a salary survey is needed 

 

Information Gathering and Research (Soliciting Input) 
We will meet with the City of Ouray via phone, Skype or Zoom and spend as much 
time as it takes to learn everything we can about your organization. Our goal is to 
thoroughly understand the values and culture of your organization, as well as the preferred 
qualifications you desire in your next City Administrator.  We will: 

♦ Meet with City Council Members 
♦ Meet with Leadership Team 
♦ Meet with Staff as directed 
♦ Meet with other stakeholders as directed 
♦ Review all documents related to the position 

 

Position Profile Development (Identifying the Ideal Candidate) 
We will develop a profile of your ideal candidate.  Once the Position Profile is written and 
approved, it will serve as the foundation for our determination of a candidate’s "fit" within the 
organization and community.  Profiles include the following: 

♦ A description of the ideal candidate’s qualifications  

• Years of related experience & ideal personality traits  
♦ Organization-specific information 

• Description of the organization, position and key responsibilities 

• Priorities and challenges facing the organization  
♦ Community-specific information 
♦ Compensation package details 
♦ Information on how to apply 

103



 

3 

2.  Identify, Target, and Recruit Viable Candidates 
 

Outreach and Advertising Strategy (Locating Qualified Candidates) 
We recognize that often the best candidates are not actively looking for a new 
position--this is the person we want to reach and recruit.  We have an aggressive 
recruitment strategy which involves the following: 
 

♦ Print and Internet-based Ads placed locally and nationally in professional 
publications, journals and on related websites. 
 

♦ Targeted Direct Mail Brochures sent directly to hundreds of highly qualified 
city/county administrators/managers who are not actively searching for a new 
position. 

 

♦ Focused Candidate Outreach and Networking via over 7,500 ICMA personal 
emails from our database.  

 

♦ Posting the Position Profile on Prothman's Facebook and LinkedIn pages, 
and on the Prothman website, which receives over five thousand visits per 
month from potential candidates. 

 

3.  Conduct Preliminary Screening 
 

Candidate Screening (Narrowing the Field) 
Once the application deadline has passed, we will conduct an extensive candidate review 
designed to gather detailed information on the leading candidates.  The screening process 
has 3 key steps: 
 

1) Application Review: Using the Position Profile as our guide, we will screen the 
candidates for qualifications based on the resumes, applications, and 
supplemental question responses (to determine a candidate’s writing skills, 
analytical abilities and communication style). After the initial screening, we take 
the yes's and maybe's and complete a second screening where we take a much 
deeper look into the training, work history and qualifications of each candidate. 
 

2) Internet Publication Background Search:  We conduct an internet publication 
search on all semifinalist candidates prior to their interviews.  If we find anything 
out of the ordinary, we discuss this during the initial interview and bring this 
information to you.   
 

3) Personal Interviews: We will conduct in-depth videoconference or in-person 
interviews with the top 6 to 12 candidates.  During the interviews, we ask the 
technical questions to gauge their competency, and just as importantly, we 
design our interviews to measure the candidate's fit within your organization.   
 

Candidate Presentation (Choosing the Finalists) 
We will prepare and send to you a detailed summary report of the semifinalist 
candidates and binders which include each candidate's application materials, including 
resume, cover letter, and supplemental question responses, and the results of the personal 
interviews and publication search.   
 

We will meet via Skype or Zoom and discuss with you what we have learned throughout 
our screening process.  We will review with you the candidates' qualifications and 
experience, the results of the semifinal interviews and the candidates' strengths and 
weaknesses relative to fit within your organization.  We will give you our recommendations 
and then work with you to identify the top 3 to 5 candidates to invite to the final interviews.  
We will discuss the planning and design of the final interview process during this meeting 
after the finalist candidates have been agreed upon.  

104



 

4 

4.  Prepare Final Interview Process  
 

Final Interview Process (Selecting the Right Candidate) 
The design of the final interviews is an integral component towards making sure that all 
stakeholders have the opportunity to learn as much as possible about each candidate.   
 

♦ Elements of the design process include: 

• Deciding on the Structure of the Interviews 
We will tailor the interview process to fit your needs.  It may involve using 
various interview panels or an evening reception.  

• Deciding on Candidate Travel Expenses 
We will help you identify which expenses your organization wishes to cover. 

 

♦ Evening Reception 
You may wish to have an evening reception so that staff and stakeholders have a 
chance to meet the finalist candidates in an informal setting.  We will facilitate the 
reception. 
 

♦ Background Checks  
Background checks include the following: 

• References   
We conduct 6-8 reference checks on each candidate. We ask each candidate 
to provide names of their supervisors, subordinates and peers for the last 
several years.   

• Education Verification, Criminal History, Driving Record and Sex 
Offender Check 
We contract with Sterling for all background checks.  
 

♦ Candidate Travel Coordination  
After you have identified the expenses you wish to cover, we work with the 
candidates to organize the most cost-effective travel arrangements.   
 

♦ Final Interview Binders  
The Final Interview Binders include suggested interview questions, as well as the 
candidates' applications, supplemental question responses, and resumes, and 
are the tool that keeps the final interview process organized.  Each panel 
member will be provided a binder. 
  

♦ Final Interviews with Candidates 
We will travel to the City of Ouray and facilitate the interviews.  The 
interview process usually begins with a morning briefing where schedule and 
process will be discussed with all those involved in the interviews. Each 
candidate will then go through a series of one-hour interview sessions, with an 
hour break for lunch.  
 

♦ Panelists & Decision Makers Debrief:  After the interviews are complete, we 
will facilitate a debrief with all panel participants where the panel facilitators will 
report their panel's view of the strengths and weaknesses of each candidate 
interviewed.   

 

♦ Candidate Evaluation Session: After the debrief, we will facilitate the evaluation 
process, help the decision makers come to consensus, discuss next steps, and 
organize any additional candidate referencing or research if needed. 
 

♦ Facilitate Employment Agreement:  Once the top candidate has been selected, 
we will offer any assistance needed in developing a letter of offer and negotiating 
terms of the employment agreement. 
 

105



 

5 

FEE, EXPENSES & GUARANTEE  
 

 

Professional Fee 
 

The fee for conducting a City Administrator recruitment with a one-year guarantee is 
$18,500, plus $6,500 for expenses, for an all-inclusive cost of $25,000, not including 
candidate travel. Also, because of the stay-at-home rulings, this price only includes 
travel for the consultant to visit the City one time for the final interviews.  The professional 
fee covers all Prothman staff time required to conduct the recruitment. This includes all 
correspondence and on-site meetings with the client, writing and placing the recruitment ads, 
development of the candidate profile, creating and processing invitation letters, reviewing 
resumes, coordinating and conducting semifinalist interviews, coordinating and attending finalist 
interviews, coordinating candidate travel, conducting background checks and professional 
references on the finalist candidates and all other search related tasks required to successfully 
complete the recruitment.   
 

Professional fees are billed in three equal installments throughout the recruitment, one at the 
beginning, at the halfway point, and upon completion. 
 

Expenses   

Expenses will cost $6,500 and include: 

• Newspaper, trade journal, websites and other advertising ($1,500) 

• Direct mail announcements (approx. $1,800) 

• Interview binders & printing of materials (approx. $500)  

• Delivery expenses for Interview Binders (approx. $400) 

• Consultant travel: ($1,600 - one trip) 

• Background checks performed by Sterling ($700)    
 
 

Other Expenses 
 

Candidate travel: We cannot approximate candidate travel expenses because they vary 
depending on the number of candidates, how far the candidates travel, length of stay, if spouses 
are included, etc. If you wish, we will coordinate and forward to your organization the 
candidates' travel receipts for direct reimbursement to the candidates.  

 

Warranty 
 

Repeat the Recruitment:  If you follow our process and a top candidate is not chosen, we will 
repeat the recruitment with no additional professional fee, the only cost to you would be for the 
expenses.  
 

Guarantee 
 

If you follow our process and the selected finalist is terminated for cause or resigns within one 
year from the employment date, we will conduct one replacement search with no additional 
professional fee, the only cost to you would be the expenses.   
 

Cancellation 
 

You have the right to cancel the search at any time.  Your only obligation would be the fees and 
expenses incurred prior to cancellation. 
 
 
 

106



 CITY OF OURAY 
 
 Professional Service Agreement 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is entered this 16th day of March 2020 by and between:  
 

The City of Ouray, a Colorado municipal corporation (the City); and, 
 

Schmueser Gordon Meyer, Inc. d/b/a SGM Inc., a Colorado Corporation, 
(the Contractor).   

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, 
promises and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows. 
 
1. SCOPE OF CONTRACTOR SERVICES.  The Contractor agrees to provide services 

in accordance with the Scope of Contractor Services attached and 
incorporated as Exhibit A. 

 
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this agreement shall begin on the effective 

date above and continue to the completion of the services described in 
Exhibit A, upon termination of this agreement by either party, or if the 
services are not completed, this agreement will expire on December 31, 2020 
at which time the City and the Contractor will either negotiate a new 
agreement to complete the services, extend this agreement or their 
relationship under this agreement will terminate.   

 
3. FEES FOR SERVICES.  In consideration of the services to be performed pursuant 

to this agreement the City will pay the Contractor a sum not to exceed of 
Twenty-Four Thousand Two-Hundred Dollars ($24,200.00).  

 
4. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES.  The Contractor shall submit a detailed invoice 

monthly or every other month to the City describing the professional 
services rendered.  The invoice shall document the hours spent on the 
project identifying by work category and subcategory the work performed 

107



2 
 

for the period, the hours worked by employee, and the hourly rate charged 
for that work.  The City shall have access to backup payroll documentation 
identifying individual employee, date, and hours worked.  The City shall 
pay the invoice within thirty (30) days of receipt unless the work or the 
documentation therefore is unsatisfactory.  Payments made after thirty (30) 
days may be assessed an interest charge of one percent (1%) per month 
unless the delay in payment resulted from unsatisfactory work or 
documentation therefore. 
 

5. CITY REPRESENTATIVE.  The City designates the City Administrator as its 
representative and authorizes him to make all necessary and proper 
decisions with reference to this agreement.  All requests for contract 
interpretations, changes, clarifications or instructions shall be directed to the 
City representative. 

 
6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.  The services to be performed by the Contractor 

are those of an independent contractor and not as an employee of the City.  
Nothing in this agreement shall constitute or be construed as a creation of a 
partnership or joint venture between the City and the Contractor, or their 
successors or assigns.  No agent or employee of the Contractor shall be or 
shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the City.  The City is 
interested only in the results obtained under this agreement; the manner 
and means of conducting the work are under the sole control of the 
Contractor.  None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees, 
including, but not limited to, worker compensation insurance and 
unemployment compensation insurance, are available from the City to the 
employees of the Contractor.  The Contractor will be solely and entirely 
responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, and 
subcontractors during the performance of this agreement.  The Contractor 
will pay all federal and state income tax on any moneys paid pursuant to 
this agreement. 

 
7. INSURANCE.  The Contractor agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, 

a policy or policies of insurance as called for in this agreement.  Insurance 

108



3 
 

shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the 
City.  All coverages shall be continuously maintained during the term of this 
agreement.  Each shall be primary insurance and any insurance carried by 
the City, its officers, or its employees, shall be excess and not contributory 
insurance to that provided by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall provide 
the City with certificates of insurance, or other acceptable evidence, showing 
the required coverages. The City reserves the right to request and receive a 
certified copy of any policy. 

 
a. The Contractor shall procure and maintain the minimum insurance 

coverages listed below.   
 

i. Workers’ compensation insurance to cover obligations 
imposed by the Workers’ Compensation Act of Colorado and 
any other applicable laws for any employee of the Contractor 
engaged in the performance of work under this agreement. 

  
ii. Professional liability errors and omissions or general liability 

coverage, as appropriate, with minimum limit of One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000.00). 

 
b. The Contractor shall not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, 

or other obligations assumed pursuant to this agreement by reason of 
its failure to procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure 
to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, duration, or 
types.   
 

c. Failure on the part of the Contractor to procure or maintain policies 
providing the required coverages, conditions, and minimum limits 
shall constitute a material breach of contract upon which the City may 
immediately terminate this contract, or at its discretion the City may 
procure or renew any such policy or any extended reporting period 
thereto and may pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
and all monies so paid by the City shall be repaid by the Contractor 

109



4 
 

upon demand, or the City may offset the cost of the premiums against 
any monies due to the Contractor. 

 
d. The Contractor shall be responsible for any deductible under any 

policy required above.   
  
8. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY.  The Contractor understands and acknowledges 

that the City relies on and does not waive or intend to waive by any portion 
of this agreement any provision of the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq. 

 
9. INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, 
insurers, and self-insurance pool, from and against liability for damage, 
including attorney fees and costs, arising out of death or bodily injury to 
persons or damage to property, caused by the negligence or fault of the 
Contractor or any third party under the control or supervision of the 
Contractor, but not for any amounts that are greater than that represented 
by the degree or percentage of negligence or fault attributable to the 
Contractor or the Contractor’s agents, representatives, subcontractors, or 
suppliers. 

 
10. EMPLOYMENT OF ILLEGAL ALIENS.  Pursuant to COLO. REV. STAT. § 8-17.5-

101, et seq, the Contractor certifies the following: 
 

a. Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal 
alien to perform work under this Contract. 

 
b. Contractor shall not enter into a contract with a subcontractor that 

fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor shall not 
knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work 
under this Contract. 

 

110



5 
 

c. The Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all 
employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work 
under this Contract through participation in either (a) the E-Verify 
Program, (the electronic employment verification program jointly 
administered by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and the 
Social Security Administration, or its successor program) or (b) the 
Department Program (the employment verification program 
established pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)(c). 

 
d. The Contractor shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department 

Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job 
applicants while this Contract is being performed. 

 
e. If the Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor 

performing work under this Contract knowingly employs or 
contracts with an illegal alien, the Contractor shall be required to: (a) 
notify the Subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that the 
Contractor has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing 
or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the subcontract 
with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving the notice, 
the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the 
illegal alien; except that the Contractor shall not terminate the contract 
with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor 
provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not 
knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. 

 
f. The Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the 

Department of Labor and Employment in the course of an 
investigation that the Department undertakes pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-
17.5-102(5). 

 
g. If the Contractor violates these illegal alien provisions, the City may 

terminate this Contract for a breach of contract.  If this Contract is so 
terminated, the Contractor shall be liable for actual and consequential 

111



6 
 

damages to the City. The City will notify the Office of the Secretary of 
State if the Contractor violates these provisions and the City 
terminates this Contract for that reason. 

 
h. The Contractor shall notify the City of participation in the 

Department Program and shall within twenty (20) days after hiring 
an employee who is newly hired for employment to perform work 
under this Contract affirm that the Contractor has examined the legal 
work status of such employee, retained file copies of the documents 
required by 8 USC § 1324a, and not altered or falsified the 
identification documents for such employee. Contractor shall provide 
a written, notarized copy of the affirmation to the City. 

 
11. ASSIGNMENT.  The Contractor shall neither assign any responsibilities nor 

delegate any duties arising under this agreement without the prior written 
consent of the City. 

 
12. PAYMENTS BY CITY.  Any and all payments of money by the City pursuant to 

this agreement shall be subject to the annual appropriations of money. 
 
13. LEGAL COMPLIANCE.  The Contractor shall comply with all laws, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating to the performance of this agreement, use of 
public places and safety of persons and property. 

 
14. FURTHER ASSURANCES.  Each party agrees to take such actions and sign such 

documents, certificates and instruments reasonably requested by the other 
party in order to complete the transactions contemplated by this agreement 
and to enable the requesting party to enjoy the full benefits conferred upon 
such party by this agreement. 

 
15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This instrument contains the entire agreement between 

the parties, and no statements, promises, or inducements made by either 
party or agent of either party that are not contained in this written contract 
shall be valid or binding.  This contract may not be enlarged, modified, or 

112



7 
 

altered except in writing signed by the parties and endorsed on this 
agreement.  Each person signing the contract warrants that they have 
authority to bind the City or Contractor. 

 
16. BINDING EFFECT.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

on the parties, their heirs, executors, administrators, assignees, and 
successors. 

 
17. SEVERABILITY.  If any part, term, or provision of this contract is held by the 

courts to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of Colorado, the 
validity of the remaining portions or provisions shall not be affected, and 
the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as 
if the contract did not contain the particular part, term or provision held to 
be invalid. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of Colorado, both as to interpretation and performance.  The courts of the 
State of Colorado shall have exclusive jurisdiction to resolve any disputes 
arising out of this agreement and venue shall be in Ouray County, Colorado. 

 
19. WAIVER.  No waiver of any breach of this agreement shall be held to be a 

waiver of any other or subsequent breach.  All remedies afforded in this 
contract shall be taken and construed as cumulative, that is, in addition to 
every other remedy provided therein or by law. 

 
20. COUNTERPARTS.  This agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of 
which together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
21. FACSIMILE SIGNATURES.  For the convenience of the parties, signatures to this 

agreement may be provided through facsimile transmission.  The signature 
of a party to this agreement supplied by facsimile transmission shall be as 
binding as an original. 

 

113



8 
 

22. PRONOUNS.  Wherever in this agreement, words, including pronouns, are 
used in the masculine, they shall be read and construed in the feminine or 
neuter whenever they would so apply, and wherever in this agreement, 
words, including pronouns, are used in the singular or plural, they shall be 
read and construed in the plural or singular, respectively, wherever they 
would so apply. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Contractor have signed this 

agreement effective the day and year first written above. 
 

 CITY OF OURAY:      
 
 
 ___________________________       ________________ 
 Greg Nelson, Mayor       Date 
 
 Attest: 
 
 ___________________________      __________________ 
 Melissa Drake, Clerk      Date 
   
 
 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________      _____________    
  Gerald E. Burgess, PE       Date 
  
 

114



13

City of Ouray 
Attn: Joe Coleman 
P.O. Box 468 
Ouray, CO 81427 

February 21, 2020 

RE: Box Canyon Hot Water Infrastructure Improvements 

S SGM 
www.sgm-inc.com 

SGM appreciates this opportunity to provide you a proposal for City Hot Water Line delivery design and 
construction support. 

We understand that the City would like to replace a portion of the hot water delivery line from Box 
Canyon. The work will extend from just above the Nixon property to the manhole at 7th Street. We see 
our scope of work as follows: 

1. Order engineering utility locates from 7th avenue to above the Nixon property. 

2. SGM will make a site visit and review the utilities as located with City Public Works staff. During 
this site visit we will identify the routing for the new hot water transmission line. The concept will 

be to keep the existing line operational as much as possible during the construction to minimize 
disruptions at the pool. 

3. During the site visit of task 2, we would recommend a meeting with the private property owner (Mr. 
Nixon) to discuss work on his property and how to address the heat exchange vault on his 
property. We have NOT included engineering time in our fee estimate re-design of the heat 
exchange portion of the vault. This service can be provided as requested. 

4. Perform field existing condition survey of the new alignment. The field survey work will gather the 
existing utility locates, topography and other features that will be needed for the design and 
construction. The survey work will be used for both plan and profile for the new line. The survey 
work will set the survey control for eventual construction. Ideally this task would be performed 
concurrent with task 2. 

5. Prepare bid documents (plans and specs) for competitive bidding process. 

6. Prepare an engineer's opinion of probable construction costs. 

7. SGM will assist the City through the bidding process. This will include preparing the documents, 
bid advertisement, facilitate a pre-bid meeting, answer contractor bid related questions and 

provide a recommendation to the City for a construction contractor based on the bids received. 
This will include issue a notice of award to the successful contractor. 

8. SGM will assist the City with the construction administration. This work will include facilitating a 
pre-construction meeting (if needed), reviewing submittals, answer contractor requests for 

GUNNISON l 03 West Tomichi Ave, Suite A I Gunnison, CO 81 230 I 970.64 l .5355 

Exhibit A 
March 16, 2020 PSA - SGM INC.

115



14

6 SGM 
www.sgm-inc.com 

information, attending weekly project meetings and being available as City staff needs. SGM will 
prepare contract closeout documentation. 

For the scope of work described above, our estimated fee is $24,200.00. For this project we propose to 
work on a time and materials basis as directed by the City. Our initial estimate would be a "not to exceed" 

amount unless approved in advance. 

Our fee estimate breaks down as follows: 

Survey and Existing Conditions Mapping: 
Engineering, Plans, Specs, Proj. Coard., Cost Estimates: 
Bi ct Process/Assistance: 
Construction Adrnin Assistance (Based on 5-week project: 

$4,600.00 
$11,500.00 
$600.00 
$7,500.00 

Total estimate: $24,200.00 

If you have any questions or would like additional detail regarding this proposal, please let me know. 

Please contact a at 970.707.8152 or by email at ierryb@sgm-inc.com with any questions or concerns. 

We look forward to helping the City of Ouray with this important project. 

Sincerely, 

Gerald E. Burgess, PE 

Senior Engineer/Principal 

GUNNISON 103 West Tomichi Ave, Suite A I Gunnison, CO 81230 I 970.641.5355 

Exhibit A 
March 16, 2020 PSA - SGM INC.

116



City of Ouray     March 6, 2020 
Attn: Joe Coleman 
Via email:  colemanj@cityofouray.com 
 
 
RE:  Box Canyon Hot Water Infrastructure Improvements – Heat Exchange Vault 
 
Joe, 
 
SGM recommends the following approach for the Heat Exchange Vault located on the Nixon property.   
Currently, how well the heat exchange tubing and system in place at the Nixon residence functions is an 
unknown.  Prior to making any modifications to the vault and exterior piping we believe that the existing 
system should be tested, and heat balance measurements taken.  This will enable us to put a modified 
system back in place equal to or better than the current system.  This work would be followed by a design 
for modifications or replacement.  Main work elements for this task would include: 

 Test and Balance measurement – (one of the tools used is a glycol spectrometer). 
o Test and Balance includes measuring the following: 

 Hot side (source side): 
 Entering water temperature 
 Leaving water temperature 
 Flow rate 

 Cold side (private side): 
 Entering water temperature 
 Leaving water temperature 
 System pressure drop 
 Glycol concentration (if glycol is used) 
 Flow rate 

 
The aforementioned will be followed up with: 

 Basic design and specification of new heat exchanger, general consulting and support. Calculate 
rate of heat exchange.  

o Does not include review of owner’s system beyond the (5) measurements above. 
o Includes an opinion of cost. 

 
Our fee estimate breaks down as follows: 

Test and balancing measurements:    $1,800.00 
Basic design, specs, general consult, opinion of cost est.: $2,500.00 
Bid and construction support:     $600.00 

Total estimate: $4,900.00 

If you have any questions or would like additional detail regarding this proposal, please let me know.   

Sincerely,   

 

w w w. s g m - i n c . c o m

GUNNISON                       103 West Tomichi Ave, Suite A  |  Gunnison, CO 81230  |  970.641.5355
117



118


	00_ag04-06-20
	01a_2020 04 06 Consent Agenda Update
	01b_2020 04 06 Action Item Recommendations
	03_CIty of Ouray Memorandum - COVID Legislation
	05a_Minutes 03-02-20
	05b_Minutes 03-04-20 Special Meeting
	05c_Minutes 03-11-20 Special Meeting
	05d_Minutes 03-16-20
	05e_Minutes 03-20-20 Special Meeting
	07b_PW March Update
	07c_City Resources Council Update 04-06-2020 V3
	07d_PD Update
	08a_2020 04 06 Consent Agenda Update
	08b_Bed & Breakfast Permit - Secret Garden
	09_2020 04 06 Action Item Recommendations
	09a_200310 City Second Chance Contract
	09bi_200329 Request Letter
	09bii_Recruitment Firms
	Sheet1

	09biii_Ouray City Adm Search Proposal
	09biv_Ouray Proposal submitted 4 2 20
	09bv_Ouray Proposal
	09bvi_SGR Recruitment Proposal Ourray 04-20
	09bvii_City of Ouray City Administrator Recruitment Proposal
	09ci_200316 SGM PSA
	09cii_OurayHeatExchangeVaultDesignProposal
	09ciii_ John Nixon Letter to Council



